
2017-10-26 Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors

Thursday, October 26, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.

Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD)

11603 Donner Pass Road, Truckee, CA 96161

%address1



AGENDA

12.1. Employee of the Month October 2017.pdf

12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

13. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

14.1. Approval of Meeting Minutes

14.2. Financial Report

14.3.1. Steven Thompson, MD - Professional Services
Agreement.pdf

14.3.2. Shawni Coll, DO - Professional Services Agreement.pdf

14.3.3. Cara Streit, MD - Professional Services Agreement.pdf

14.3. Contracts

14.4.1. CEO Board Report - October 2017.pdf

14.4.2. COO Board Report - October 2017.pdf

14.4.3. CNO Board Report - October 2017.pdf

14.4.4. CIIO Board Report - October 2017.pdf

14.4. Informational Reports

14.5. Policy Review

2017-09-28 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors_DRAFT
Minutes.pdf

14.2.1. Financial Report - September 2017.pdf

14.3.4. Medical Office Lease - 10175 Levon Avenue.pdf

14.4.5. CMO Board Report - October 2017.pdf

14. CONSENT CALENDAR

15.1.a RHC Presentation.pdf

15.1.b Resolution 2017-07 RHC Application for MSC Pediatric Clinic.pdf

15.3.a. Board of Directors Bylaws DRAFT v8 2017_1023 REDLINE.pdf

15. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION

2017-10-26 Regular Board Meeting_FINAL Agenda.pdf

ITEMS 1 - 11 See Agenda

12.2. National Nurse Practitioner (NP) Week is November 12-18

13.1. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Consent Agenda.pdf

14.5.1. ABD-03 Board Compensation and Reimbursement.pdf

Meeting Book - 2017-10-26 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

10/26/17 Agenda Packet

Page 4

Page 8

Page 9

Page 13

Page 19

Page 38

Page 69

Page 101

Page 132

Page 164

Page 166

Page 167

Page 168

Page 169

Page 170

Page 172

Page 184

Page 185

Page 2 of 292



15.3.b. Board of Directors Bylaws DRAFT v8 2017_1023 CLEAN.pdf

16.3. Strategic Plan Update

16.4. Board Education

16.1. 2017 Cancer Center Quality Report.pdf

16.2. Physician Engagement Survey Results
*Materials were unavailable at time of posting and may be distributed
at the meeting.

16.3.1. Strategic Update - Community Relations.pdf

16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION

18.1. 2017-10-16 Governance Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf

18.2.a 2017-10-03 Board Personnel Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf

18.2.b 2017-10-23 Board Personnel Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf

18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR
DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION

15.4. Dissolution of Tahoe Endoscopy Center, Inc.pdf

16.4.1. Emergency Preparedness Presentation.pdf

17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF
NECESSARY

18.3. 2017-10-25 Board Finance Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf

ITEMS 19 - 24: See Agenda

25. ADJOURN

Page 217

Page 238

Page 239

Page 278

Page 281

Page 289

Page 290

Page 291

Page 292

Page 3 of 292



Page 1 of 4 
 Denotes Action Item 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA 

Thursday, October 26, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. 
Tahoe Truckee Unified School District Office 
11603 Donner Pass Road, Truckee, CA 96161 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA

4. INPUT AUDIENCE
This is an opportunity for members of the public to comment on any closed session item appearing before the Board on
this agenda. Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be
submitted to the Clerk of the Board 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.

5. CLOSED SESSION
5.1. Conference with Legal Counsel; Anticipated Litigation (Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(2) & (d)(3))

A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the Board on the advice of its legal counsel, based on 
the below-described existing facts and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to litigation against 
the District. Number of Potential Cases: One. 

Receipt of Claim pursuant to Tort Claims Act or other written communication threatening litigation 
(copy available for public inspection in Clerk’s office). (Gov. Code 54956.9 (e)(3)) 

Name of Person Threatening Litigation: Kevin Baird 

5.2. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 
09/28/2017 

5.3. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code § 54957.6) 
Name of District Negotiator(s) to Attend Closed Session: Alyce Wong 
Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer 

5.4. TIMED ITEM – 5:00PM – Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Quality Assurance Committee 
Number of items: One (1) 

5.5. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Medical Staff Credentials 

6. DINNER BREAK
APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 

7. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER

Page 4 of 292



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
October 26, 2017 AGENDA – Continued 

Page 2 of 4 

 Denotes Action Item 

8. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION

9. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA

10. INPUT – AUDIENCE
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state
your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board
Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the
Board cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Board may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where
appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting.

11. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS
This is an opportunity for members of the Employee Associations to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.

12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
12.1. October 2017 Employee of the Month .................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
12.2. National Nurse Practitioner (NP) Week is November 12-18 

13. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
13.1. Medical Executive Committee (MEC) Meeting Consent Agenda .........................................ATTACHMENT 

MEC recommends the following for approval by the Board of Directors: New Clinical Policy - 
Labor-Care of the Patient Using the Jacuzzi Whirlpool Tub 

14. CONSENT CALENDAR
These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by the Board without discussion.
Any Board Member, staff member or interested party may request an item to be removed from the Consent Calendar for
discussion prior to voting on the Consent Calendar.

14.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings
9/28/2017................................................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 

14.2. Financial Report 
14.2.1. Financial Report - September 2017 .............................................................................ATTACHMENT 

14.3. Contracts 
14.3.1. Steve Thompson, M.D. – Professional Services Agreement ........................................ATTACHMENT 
14.3.2. Shawni Coll, D.O. – Professional Services Agreement .................................................ATTACHMENT 
14.3.3. Cara Streit, M.D. – Professional Services Agreement ..................................................ATTACHMENT 
14.3.4. Medical Office Lease for 10175 Levon Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 ...........................ATTACHMENT 

14.4. Staff Reports (Information Only) 
14.4.1. CEO Board Report ........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
14.4.2. COO Board Report........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
14.4.3. CNO Board Report ........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
14.4.4. CIIO Board Report ........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
14.4.5. CMO Board Report .......................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 

14.5. Policy Review 
14.5.1. ABD-03 Board Compensation and Reimbursement ....................................................ATTACHMENT 

15. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION
15.1. Rural Health Clinic ..............................................................................................................ATTACHMENT* 

Page 5 of 292



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
October 26, 2017 AGENDA – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 Denotes Action Item 

The Board of Directors will receive a presentation on the structure and operation of a rural 
health clinic and consider for approval a resolution to proceed with a rural health clinic 
application. 

15.2. Chief Executive Officer Employment Agreement ..............................................................ATTACHMENT* 
The Board of Directors will review and consider for approval an employment contract for the 
Chief Executive Officer. 

15.3. First Reading of Proposed Revisions to TFHD Board of Directors Bylaws ..........................ATTACHMENT 
 The Board of Directors will review proposed revisions to the TFHD Board of Directors Bylaws. 
15.4. Dissolution of Tahoe Endoscopy Center, Inc. ......................................................................ATTACHMENT 

The Board of Directors will consider the dissolution of Tahoe Endoscopy Center, Inc. 
 

16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 
16.1. Cancer Center Quality Report ............................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 

The Board of Directors will receive a quality presentation from the Tahoe Forest Gene Upshaw 
Memorial Cancer Center. 

16.2. Physician Engagement Survey Results............................................................................. ATTACHMENT* 
The Board of Directors will review the results of a recent physician engagement survey. 

16.3. Strategic Plan Update 
16.3.1. Community Relations ................................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 

      The Board of Directors will receive a presentation on the “Develop solid connections and 
relationships within the communities we serve” critical strategy. 

16.4. Board Education 
16.4.1. Disaster Preparedness ............................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
Chief Operating Officer will present an overview of the District’s disaster preparedness plan. 
 

17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY 
 

18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 
18.1. Governance Committee Meeting – 10/16/2017 ............................................................... ATTACHMENT 
18.2. Personnel Committee Meeting – 10/03/2017, 10/23/2017 ............................................. ATTACHMENT 
18.3. Finance Committee Meeting – 10/25/2017 ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
18.4. Quality Committee Meeting – No meeting held in October. 
18.5. Community Benefit Committee Meeting – No meeting held in October. 
 

19. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

20. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
-Date for next Regular Board Meeting has changed to November 30, 2017. The location has also been 
changed to the Eskridge Conference Room at Tahoe Forest Hospital. 
 

21. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
 

22. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY 
 

23. OPEN SESSION  
 

24. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF NECESSARY 
 

Page 6 of 292



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
October 26, 2017 AGENDA – Continued 

 

Page 4 of 4 

 Denotes Action Item 

25. ADJOURN   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District is November 30, 2017 at 
Tahoe Forest Hospital, 10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161. A copy of the board meeting agenda is posted on the District’s 
web site (www.tfhd.com) at least 72 hours prior to the meeting or 24 hours prior to a Special Board Meeting. 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 

Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment practices on 
the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is 
accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public 
meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed (i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 
582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 7 of 292

http://www.tfhd.com/


 

Employee of the Month, October 2017 
Simone Specht, Staff Nurse- MSC 

 

We are honored to announce Simone Specht, Staff Nurse, MSC as our October 
Employee of the Month.  
 
Simone has been a part of the MultiSpecialty Clinics for over 2 years and the patients 
often times ask for her by name. She is devoted to patients’ health and constantly goes 
above and beyond on a daily basis to help achieve patient satisfaction. Her knowledge 
of pediatric vaccines and her willingness to help a parent understand what is needed 
and why keeps our patients coming back.  
 
Simone demonstrates understanding when she talks on the phone with a soft tone to 
sooth a concerned parent. She believes in a technique called “using your mommy 
instinct” and puts herself in their shoes. She is an amazing team player and has recently 
taken on new responsibilities. She is always willing to assist physicians and often times 
floats to other offices to help. Simone demonstrates quality in her knowledge and skills. 
She is the go-to nurse regarding vaccines and patient triage.  
 
Simone meets and exceeds the definition of the TFHS mission and values but most of 
all has been an asset to our hospital with her knowledge and dedication to patients’ 
health and her ability to comfort and sooth patients. 

 

Please join us in congratulating all of our Terrific Nominees! 
 

Johny Lopez- Phlebotomist- Occ Health 
Pedro Rodriquez- Cook- Dietary 
Isaura Bobadilla- EVS Aide- EVS 

Cody Halvorson- Associate System Admin- IT 

Page 8 of 292



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

   CONFIDENTIAL 
   PLEASE DO NOT REPRODUCE OR DISTRIBUTE 
  This is a Medical Staff Committee document protected by Sec. 1157 of the Calif. Evidence Code 

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Thursday, October 26, 2017 

REFERRED BY: AGENDA ITEMS 
OVERHEAD/ 

ATTACHMENT RECOMMEND 

MEDICAL STAFF A motion was made, seconded, and carried to recommend approval of the following to the Board of 
Directors: 

1. OB/Peds Department The Executive Committee recommends approval of the following: 

New Clinical Policy: Labor-Care of the Patient Using the Jacuzzi Whirlpool Tub 

Recommend 
approval 

Page 9 of 292



COPY

Current Status: Active PolicyStat ID: 4029732

Origination Date: 08/2017
Last Approved: 09/2017
Last Revised: 09/2017
Next Review: 09/2018
Department: Women and Family Center -

DWFC
Applies To: Tahoe Forest Hospital

Labor - Care of the Patient Using the Jacuzzi
Whirlpool Tub, DWFC-1700

PURPOSE:
A. To provide guidelines for the safe and appropriate use of water labor on the obstetrical unit.

B. To promote comfort and relaxation during labor

A. Abnormal fetal heart rate (FHR) tracing

B. Immunosuppressed patients

C. Maternal infection

1. Hematogenous viral infection

2. Open or draining wounds

3. Clostridium Difficile and/ or Norovirus infections

D. Abnormal or excessive vaginal bleeding

E. Maternal temperature greater than 99.9 degrees Fahrenheit (F)

F. Epidural analgesia/anesthesia

G. IV Analgesia

H. Patients with implanted catheters

I. Patients with surgical incisions

POLICY:
A. A provider order must be obtained prior to a laboring patient using the Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub

B. All laboring patients using the Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub will practice good basic hygiene and shower with
soap and water prior to immersing in the Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub.

C. All laboring patients are accompanied by a support person or staff member at all times while in the
Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub since hydrotherapy may potentially increase weakness, dizziness, nausea,
maternal tachycardia, or maternal hypotension.

D. Support person(s) or staff member(s) accompanying the laboring patient will practice appropriate hand

CONTRAINDICATIONS:

Labor - Care of the Patient Using the Jacuzzi Whirlpool Tub, DWFC-1700. Retrieved 09/18/2017. Official copy at
http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/4029732/. Copyright © 2017 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 1 of 3

Page 10 of 292

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.

https://tfhd.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=29044


COPY

hygiene both before and after assisting the laboring patient.

E. Document maternal and fetal assessment prior to the use of the Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub. Assess and
document progress of labor, uterine contraction pattern, status of membranes, fetal position, maternal
vital signs, and water temperature prior to patient entering water. Fetal heart rate is monitored during the
use with telemetry fetal according to AWHONN guidelines. Maternal vital signs are taken and
documented in accordance with unit guidelines.

F. The patient should get out of the jetted bathtub if the baseline of the fetal heart rate is above 160 beats
per minute (bpm).

G. Maternal temperature is monitored every hour while laboring in the Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub. Discontinue use
of the Jacuzzi tub if persistent maternal temperature is greater than or equal to 100.4 degrees F occurs.

H. Fill the Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub with warm water to a level that covers the maternal abdomen. The water
temperature is maintained at 91.4-100.4 degrees F not to exceed 100.4 degrees F and to patient comfort.
Document the water temperature prior to use and every hour until water labor is discontinued.

I. Explain the procedure and purpose of water labor to patient/family. Demonstrate the use of the
emergency call light.

J. Discuss the potential routes of infection caused by contaminated water including: accidental ingestion of
the water , breathing sprays and aerosols from the water, and allowing wounds to come in direct contact
with water.

K. Patients using the Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub are observed for signs and symptoms of overheating and
dehydration. ice chips, Popsicles, and/or IV fluids are provided as needed and consistent with physician
orders.

L. Assist the patient in and out of the tub

M. Encourage oral hydration and frequent urination .

N. Patients with ruptured membranes may utilize the Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub.

O. Assist patient from tub if she feels dizzy during use

P. Using a gloved hand, Remove any blood clots, debris or floating material from water. The water should be
kept as clean as possible. The tub should be drained, cleaned and refilled as needed. (Refer to cleaning
procedure below).

Q. Keep floor free from water to prevent slippage.

R. Use gloves when contacting water (Refer to policy Hand Hygiene and Glove Use, AIPC-46).

S. Environmental Services to clean tub according to their policy after patient use (Refer to policy Jacuzzi
Whirlpool Cleaning, DEVS-1611)

PROCEDURE:
A. Between Each Use (same patient)

1. Drain the dirty water from the tub

2. Wipe the walls and bottom of the tub with germicidal disposable wipes

3. Let the solution stand for a minimum of 2 minutes

4. Rinse tub with clean water

Labor - Care of the Patient Using the Jacuzzi Whirlpool Tub, DWFC-1700. Retrieved 09/18/2017. Official copy at
http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/4029732/. Copyright © 2017 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 2 of 3

Page 11 of 292



COPY

A. Time entering Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub

B. Temperature of water upon entering Jacuzzi Whirlpool tub and every hour after

C. Fetal heart rate (FHR) assessment prior to and after entering Jacuzzi Whirlpool. Continue FHR
assessment according to department guidelines.

D. Maternal vital signs per unit guidelines. Maternal temperature should be assessed and documented every
hour while utilizing the jacuzzi tub.

E. Patient's response to water labor

F. Time when water labor discontinued.

Related Policies/Forms:

References:

All revision dates: 09/2017, 09/2017, 09/2017, 08/2017, 08/2017

Attachments: No Attachments

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Kristy Blake: Director Women and Family 09/2017

OB Peds Committee Kristy Blake: Director Women and Family 09/2017

Kylie Morgan: Clinical Coordinator 09/2017

DOCUMENTATION:

Hand Hygiene and Glove Use, AIPC-46

Jacuzzi Whirlpool Cleaning, DEVS-1611

AWHONN (2000) "Clinical position statement-fetal assessment" Washington DC

Babosa, F.M. et al (2009) A randomized controlled trial evaluating the effect of immersion bath on labor pain.

Midwifery. 25, 286-294

Benefield, R.D. (2002) Hydrotherapy in labor. Journal of Nursing Scholarship (34)4, 347-352

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advisory
Committee (HICPAC). Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control in Health care Facilities. MMWR, 2003

Mackey, M.M. (2001). Use of water in labor and birth. Clinical Obstetrics and Gynecology. (44)4, 733-749.

Simpson & Creehan (2008) AWHONN's Perinatal Nursing, 3rd Edition, Lippincott.

Labor - Care of the Patient Using the Jacuzzi Whirlpool Tub, DWFC-1700. Retrieved 09/18/2017. Official copy at
http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/4029732/. Copyright © 2017 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 3 of 3

Page 12 of 292

http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/3405564/latest/
http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/3148522/latest/


 

Page 1 of 6 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 

Thursday, September 28, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. 
Tahoe Truckee Unified School District Office 

11603 Donner Pass Road, Truckee, CA 96161 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board:  Charles Zipkin, M.D., Board President; Randy Hill, Vice President; Dale Chamblin, Treasurer; 
Alyce Wong, R.N., Secretary; Mary Brown, Board Member  

 
Staff in attendance: Harry Weis, Chief Executive Officer; Matt Mushet, In-House Counsel; Martina 
Rochefort, Clerk of the Board 

 
Other: David Ruderman, Assistant General Counsel 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
The order of closed session items will be adjusted to accommodate presenter schedules. Items 5.1. and 
5.3. will move to Closed Session later in the meeting. 
 

4. INPUT AUDIENCE   
No public comment was received. 
 

Open Session recessed at 4:01 p.m. 
 

5. CLOSED SESSION   
5.1. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Second Quarter 2017 Quality Dashboard – Closed Session 
Number of items: One (1) 

Item deferred to later in the meeting. 
 

5.2. Report Involving Trade Secrets (Health & Safety Code § 32106(c)) 
Proposed New Program and Service: Four (4) items 
Estimated date of public disclosure: 12/31/2017 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.3. TIMED ITEM – 4:45 PM - Conference with Legal Counsel; Existing Litigation (Gov. Code § 
54956.9(d)(1)) 

The District Board finds, based on advice from legal counsel, that discussion in open session will 
prejudice the position of the local agency in the litigation. 
 

Page 13 of 292



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
September 28, 2017 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 6 

Case Name Unspecified: Case name would jeopardize service of process or settlement 
negotiations. 

Item deferred to later in the meeting. 
 

5.4. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code § 54957.6) 
Name of District Negotiator(s) to Attend Closed Session: Alex MacLennan and Richard Rybicki 
Employee Organization(s): Employees Association and Employees Association of Professionals 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.5. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Government Code § 54957) 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.6. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 
08/24/2017  

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.7. TIMED ITEM – 5:30PM – Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Medical Staff Credentials 
Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 
6. DINNER BREAK 

 

7. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 
Open session reconvened at 6:06 p.m. 
 

8. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
General Counsel reported there were changes to the order of closed session items. Items 5.1. and 5.3. 
are being moved until after the open session concludes at item 22. There were no reportable actions 
on items 5.2., 5.4., and 5.5. Items 5.6 and 5.7. were approved on 5-0 vote. 
 
9. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
Items 5.1. and 5.3. have been moved to later in the agenda. 
 

10. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
No public comment was received. 

 

11. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
No comment was received from the employee associations. 

 

12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
12.1. Julia Cuevas was named September 2017 Employee of the Month. 
12.2. Tahoe Forest Health System “Best Of” winners were featured. 
12.3. Harry Weis was named on Becker’s Critical Access Hospital CEO to Know list.  
12.4. National Physician Assistant (PA) Week is October 6-12. 

 
13. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Page 14 of 292



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
September 28, 2017 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

13.1. Medical Executive Committee (MEC) Meeting Consent Agenda 
MEC recommends the following for approval by the Board of Directors: Standardized Procedure – 
Telephone Colonoscopy Screening Process. 

 
Discussion was held. 
 
Director Zipkin noted a change discussed at a Medical Executive Committee meeting on item 2.1.1.14 that 
had not been made in the document. 
 
General Counsel noted 2.1.1.14 had been stricken from the version approved by Medical Executive 
Committee.   
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Brown, seconded by Director Wong, to approve the 
Medical Executive Committee Meeting Consent Agenda with change noted. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Brown, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: Zipkin  
NAYS: None 

 

14. CONSENT CALENDAR 
These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by the Board without discussion.  
Any Board Member, staff member or interested party may request an item to be removed from the Consent Calendar for 
discussion prior to voting on the Consent Calendar.   

14.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings 
8/24/2017 

14.2. Financial Report 
14.2.1. Financial Report - August 2017 

14.3. Contracts 
14.3.1. Steven Thompson, M.D. – Professional Services Agreement 
14.3.2. Shawni Coll, D.O. – Professional Services Agreement 
14.3.3. Cara Streit, M.D.  – Professional Services Agreement 
14.3.4. Cara Streit, M.D.  – Physician Recruitment Agreement 

14.4. Staff Reports (Information Only) 
14.4.1. COO Board Report 
14.4.2. CNO Board Report 
14.4.3. CMO Board Report 

 
ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Hill, to approve the 

consent calendar as presented. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Brown, Hill, Chamblin and Zipkin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 

 
15. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

15.1. Tahoe Institute for Rural Health Research (TIRHR) 
Discussion was held on the approval of a funding request. 
 

Page 15 of 292



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
September 28, 2017 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 4 of 6 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Hill, to approve the 
Tahoe Institute of Rural Health Research funding request of $125,000. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Brown, Hill, Chamblin and Zipkin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 

 
15.2. Resolution 2017-05 

Discussion was held on a resolution electing to become subject to Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Act. 
 
Public comment was received from Rick McConn, Chief Facilities Officer. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Hill, seconded by Director Chamblin, to approve 
Resolution 2017-05 as presented. Roll call vote taken. 

No public comment received. 
  Brown – AYE 
  Wong – AYE 
  Chamblin – AYE 
  Hill – AYE 
  Zipkin - AYE 
 

15.3. Resolution 2017-06 
Discussion was held on a resolution related to a policy on awarding public projects in compliance with the 
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Wong, to approve 
Resolution 2017-06 as presented. Roll call vote taken. 

  Brown – AYE 
  Wong – AYE 
  Chamblin – AYE 
  Hill – AYE 
  Zipkin - AYE 
   

15.4. CEO Incentive Compensation 
Discussion was held on FY18 CEO Incentive Compensation Criteria. 
 
Public comment was received from Dr. Shawni Coll, Juan Abarca-Sanchez and Alex MacLennan. 
 
The Board of Directors would like a note added to the presented CEO Incentive Compensation Criteria 
that the financial goal must be achieved in order for the remaining metrics to be paid out.  
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Brown, seconded by Director Wong, to approve the CEO 
Incentive Compensation presented for fiscal year 2018 with the addition noted 
above. 
AYES: Directors, Brown, Wong, Chamblin, Hill and Zipkin 
Abstention: None  

Page 16 of 292



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
September 28, 2017 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

NAYS: None 
 

16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 
16.1. Strategic Plan Update 

16.1.1. Electronic Medical Record 
Discussion was held on EPIC, the District’s new electronic medical record system (EMR). 
 
No public comment was received. 
 

16.2. 2017 Employee Engagement Survey Results 
Discussion was held on the results of the 2017 Press Ganey Employee Engagement Survey. 
 
Public comment received from Juan Abarca-Sanchez. 
 

16.3. CEO Board Report 
Discussion was held on the CEO’s board report. 
 
No public comment was received. 
 

16.4. Board Strategic Goals 
No discussion was held. 
 
No public comment was received. 

 

17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY 
Not applicable. 
 
18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

18.1. Governance Committee Meeting – 09/18/2017 
Director Hill gave an update from the recent Governance Committee meeting. 

18.2. Quality Committee Meeting – 09/19/2017 
Director Wong gave an update from the recent Quality Committee meeting. 

18.3. Finance Committee Meeting – 09/25/2017 
Director Chamblin gave an update from the recent Finance Committee meeting. 

18.4. Personnel – Retirement Subcommittee Meeting – No meeting held in September. 
18.5. Community Benefit Committee Meeting – No meeting held in September. 
 

19. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
None. 
 
20. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
-date for special meeting 
-education on rural health clinic structure 
-disaster preparedness presentation 
 

21. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
None. 

Page 17 of 292



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
September 28, 2017 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 6 of 6 

 
Open Session recessed at 7:45 p.m. 
 
22. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY 
Item 5.1. from earlier closed session 

22.1. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Second Quarter 2017 Quality Dashboard – Closed Session 
Number of items: One (1) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 
Item 5.3. from earlier closed session 

22.2. Conference with Legal Counsel; Existing Litigation (Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(1)) 

The District Board finds, based on advice from legal counsel, that discussion in open session will 
prejudice the position of the local agency in the litigation. 
 
Case Name Unspecified: Case name would jeopardize service of process or settlement 
negotiations. 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 
23. OPEN SESSION  
 
 

24. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF NECESSARY 
No reportable actions were taken on items 22.1. and 22.2. 
 
25. ADJOURN   
Meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 

 
 

Page 18 of 292



Page 19 of 292



Page 20 of 292



Page 21 of 292



Page 22 of 292



Page 23 of 292



Page 24 of 292



Page 25 of 292



Page 26 of 292



Page 27 of 292



Page 28 of 292



Page 29 of 292



Page 30 of 292



Page 31 of 292



Page 32 of 292



Page 33 of 292



Page 34 of 292



Page 35 of 292



Page 36 of 292



Page 37 of 292



14.3. Contracts 

Contracts redacted. 

Available for public viewing via a Public Records request. 



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

Board Informational Report 

By: Harry Weis DATE:  10/17/17
CEO 

For the first month this calendar year we have been seeing slightly lower patient volumes in 
the month of October.  We have not had the normal “shoulder season” patient volume drop off 
this year or even last year to the best of my recollection.  Volumes usually pick up again in the 
next month or so. 

We had a great outreach visit with the CEO of Eastern Plumas Hospital District in Portola, CA 
earlier this month; as rural health systems we share many similar needs and goals.  We do 
believe as we meet with other area providers over the next several weeks in our region, it’s 
possible a seventh critical strategy might evolve or be proposed to facilitate new cooperative 
working arrangements to preserve more sustainable healthcare in our rural communities. 

As you visit businesses in our region, you will see “help wanted” signs in many of them.  We at 
Tahoe Forest are experiencing difficulty in filling and retaining some staff positions in some 
areas of the hospital as well, so we are really examining market conditions and external 
competitive pay data to improve retention and reduce turnover.  It is very likely we will have to 
change some of our pay practices in the not too distant future. 

The rapid economic growth in Reno is one of several factors driving a tighter employment 
market for businesses all around Lake Tahoe and in our local region.  We expect that we will 
continue to see the impacts of what is going on in Reno in an ever increasing manner for 
several years to come in and around our region. 

At Incline Village Community Hospital a great luncheon was held this month with wonderful 
friends of the hospital from the Incline Village community.  Dr. Laning Andrews, one of the 
Emergency Department physicians spoke.  There is a true sense of a larger and deeper bond 
with this community and the hospital each year! 

Our team has produced another six shows this month on Mountain Health Today.  These 
television shows which will be released over the next several months on important topics, 
detailing how Tahoe Forest is working to improve patient safety, communicate important 
improvements at the hospital and to improve more timely access to healthcare.  As these 
programs become available on TV they will also be available 24/7 on our website 
www.tfhd.com. 

In addition, we sent a letter to households in our region sharing the launch of EPIC, our new 
electronic health record system, effective 11/1/2017. We advised that our team is going 
through a transition as we seek to improve the care we provide to all in our region. 

Page 164 of 292

http://www.tfhd.com/


Every October, we honor employees who have reached 5, 10, 15, 20, 25, 30, 35 and 40 years 
of service in our health system.  The group we honored this year was quite large so we held 
two events this month to honor these great employees who have served the health system for 
many, many years! 
 
We are on the countdown of roughly 14 days on the date of this memo to our “go live” with 
EPIC and 2 related business software applications.  Our team including physicians is working 
hard to make this “go live” a success.  There are significant daily activities going on each day 
now and have been for a long time, to assure the smoothest start possible on 11/1.  This event 
is always very stressful for any hospital team and I applaud our team for their courage and 
commitment to make this important change to serve our community better for years to come 
with these new tools. 
 
We continue to monitor and act on all activities of the federal or statement government as 
applicable to assure that our voice is heard on critical regulatory or policy concerns that might 
help or harm healthcare in this region or in America. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 165 of 292



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

    
 Board COO Report 
 
By: Judith B. Newland  DATE: October 2017 
 
 
 
 
Just Do It” – Demonstrate measurable improvements annually in both Quality and Patient Satisfaction. 
 
As part of the State of Nevada Emergency Services response program, IVCH communicated daily with the Emergency 
Operation Committee overseeing the Las Vegas shooting.  IVCH provided bed availability. 
 
TFHD completed a successful disaster exercise in collaboration with Nevada County Health Department and local school 
district.  The drill included working with Nevada County to obtain vaccinations and supplies for immunizing small pox.  
Hospital staff and school district were involved in the drill.  
 
Thank you to the Patient and Family Advisory Council who provided input into communication with patients and visitors 
when we go live with Epic on November 1st. A communication plan was implemented based on their recommendations.  
The hospital and medical staff continue to be diligent in their preparation for the transition to Mercy Epic. 
 
IVCH completed a successful disaster exercise in October that was a statewide, full-scale exercise in which all hospitals 
were asked to participate.  The exercise was a swarm of major earthquakes occurring within Nevada causing significant 
damage and injuries throughout the state.  Thank you to the hospital and medical staff who participated.  
  
Develop solid connections and relationships within the communities we serve.  
 
The Incline Village Community Hospital Foundation (IVCHF) had a successful Donor Appreciation Luncheon in October.  
The luncheon was held at IVCH with excellent catering by TFHS dietary services.  Dr. Andrews, IVCH Emergency 
Department physician gave a talk.  Flu shots were made available to those attending.   
 
IVCH in collaboration with Washoe County Sheriff hosted a Prescription Round Up in October.  This community service 
enables residents to drop of medication for appropriate disposal.  
 
 
Creating and implementing a New Master Plan 
Construction Update: 

 The Mammography upgrade to Tomosynthesis and Stereotactic Biopsy unit is installed and going through the 45 
day testing and certification phase.  Licensing and staff training will then occur with projected scheduling of 
patients to begin late November. The Dexascan has been relocated to the 3 bay unit in the ED temporarily.   

 Nurse Call/PA replacement project continues on the med/surg units. Work consists of replacing existing nurse 
call in the entire Western Addition as well as all Public Address Speakers throughout TFH.  Additionally new 
televisions are being installed.  

Page 166 of 292



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board CNO Report 

 
By: Karen Baffone, RN, MS  DATE:  October, 2017 
 Chief Nursing Officer 
 
 
Strategy Two:  Choosing and implementing the correct new Electronic Health Record for 
our system that spans all physician, OP and IP services.  
 
The GLR 15 days to EPIC occurred on October 16, 2017.  The majority of all gaps will be 
addressed by go-live.  Last week the CORe (operational readiness) and ARCR (revenue cycle) 
group voted unanimously to proceed with the November 1, 2017 GO LIVE.  Training continues for 
staff and physicians and the technical testing of systems is proceeding. 
 
Daily Huddles are addressing the gaps with forward progress being made ongoing to launch date 
and subsequent months following.  We will continue these EPIC focused huddles to ensure a 
successful launch of the EHR.   
 
 
 Strategy Four:  Developing and implementing a comprehensive Care Coordination Plan 
coupled with Patient Navigation for all patients that touch our healthcare system. 
 
We have hired a new Director of Case Management and Care Coordination, Karyn Grow who 
will join the organization on October 23, 2017.  This addition will launch the integration of these 
two departments to enhance service across the continuum with the focus of decreasing our 
readmission rate, providing services both in and out of the health system, and keeping our 
community healthy and at their optimal level of functioning. 
 
 
Strategy Six:  Just Do IT 
 
The PRIME project has submitted another quarter of data.  The programs of “Nonmalignant 
chronic pain management and healthy hearts continue to impact our MediCal population and 
will expand to other patients as the project progresses. 
 
The nursing division has submitted application for the 2018 Pathways to Excellence 
designation.  The Pathway to Excellence Program defines and measures the essential 
elements of an optimal nursing practice environment. Designation confirms to the community 
that our healthcare organization is committed to nurses, recognizes what is important to 
nursing practice, and values nurses’ contributions in the workplace. 

 

Page 167 of 292



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

 
   
  Board Informational Report 

 
By: Jake  Dorst        DATE:  10/18/2017 

 CIIO 
 
 
Mercy Epic  

 Go-Live has been given the green light and set for November 1st.  
 All departments are showing ready status with a few last minute items to be addressed but 

nothing that will prevent go-live.  
 Mercy will have staff on–site for 2 weeks to help with any issues.  
 We are keeping additional help on contract through March 2nd for anyone that requires 

additional help.  
 Wish us luck! 

Page 168 of 292



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board Informational Report 

 
By: Shawni L. Coll D.O., FACOG  DATE:  October 15, 2017 
 Chief Medical Officer 
 
 
 
1. GOAL: A complete makeover of our Physician service line 

Provider burn out is a hot topic and we are looking at ways to provide support to our providers 
and to decrease burn out rates. We are especially aware of this as we Go Live with Mercy Epic 
on November 1, 2017.  
 
We have interviewed two new Family Practice candidates that are interested in moving to the 
area and have leads on neurologists and a gastroenterologist. We continue to struggle with 
physician recruitment and retention due to high call volumes, high cost of living, and the higher 
skill set needed for rural medicine.  

 
2. GOAL: Electronic Health Record 

Provider training is coming to an end and provider specific workshops will be held to have the 
provider's preferences set into the "live environment" and ready on Day #1 of Mercy Epic. We 
have Superuser staff that will be available 24/7 for the first few weeks of Go Live and also 
provider specific support in the OR and on the floor. These proactive management strategies 
should ensure a positive transition next month. 

 
3. GOAL: New Master Space Plan 

We are in the final review stages for the Third Floor of the MOB, which will ultimately be the 
Pediatric Clinic space.  We have also been formulating plans in the IM/Cards building to help 
accommodate more providers.  

 
4. GOAL:  Just Do It 

We are actively revising our current complaint process and will be rolling out the provider 
specific peer review forms. Provider Satisfaction Survey results are in and an action plan is 
being formulated to address the opportunities for advancement.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 169 of 292



ABD-03 Board Compensation and Reimbursement Policy 
 
PURPOSE: 
To provide reimbursement to the Board of Directors, consistent with legislative regulations, for the 
performance of the duties of their office. 

POLICY: 
A. As allowed by California Health & Safety Code, Section 32103 , and Local Health Care District Law, 

and required by the Political Reform Act (as amended by AB 1234, 2005), the payment of One 
Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per meeting not to exceed five (5) meetings a month as further defined 
below, is authorized as compensation to each member of the Board of Directors. Each member of the 
Board of Directors shall further be allowed his/her actual necessary traveling and incidental expenses 
incurred in the performance of official business of the District.  

B. For the purpose of compensation, a meeting is defined as:  
1. Regular and Special Board Meetings;  
2. Board Committee meetings;  
3. Hospital District meetings at which the Board member is present as a designated Board 

representative (e.g., Medical Executive Committee, Bioethics Committee, IVCH Foundation, 
TFHS Foundation, TIRHR Board)  

4. Meetings of governmental agencies and community organizations, etc. where the Board 
member is representing the TFHD (i.e., Rotary, Tahoe City Breakfast Club, Truckee Daybreak 
Club). To be compensated, the Board member must be on the program or speaking to an item 
on the agenda related to the Hospital District at the request of the Board President or Chief 
Executive Officer.  

5. Conferences, seminars and other educational meetings do not qualify for meeting 
compensation.  

C. Members of the Board of Directors of the Tahoe Forest Hospital District and their eligible dependents 
shall be eligible to participate in the health, dental, vision and life insurance programs of Tahoe Forest 
Hospital District in a manner, including appropriate discounts, comparable to that offered to the 
Management Staff of the District.  

PROCEDURE: 
A. Board members are responsible for notifying the Executive Assistant in writing of meetings attended 

in the prior month, noting the day and purpose of each meeting prior to the last business day of each 
month.  

B. Board members shall also provide brief oral reports on meetings attended at the expense of TFHD at 
the next regular Board meeting.  

C. TFHD provides compensation to Board members per meeting and provides reimbursement for actual 
and necessary expenses incurred by Board members in the performance of official duties; therefore, 
all agency officials, including Board members shall receive training in ethics pursuant to AB 1234. 
The ethics training shall last for at least two hours and occur every two years. These ethics courses 
may be taken at home, in-person, or online.  

D.C. Board of Directors Travel Allowance  
1. Meals will be reimbursed up to a daily per diem rate based on the location of the conference 

subject to IRS per diem guidelines.  
2. Air Fare for Board Members only.  
3. Parking and/or taxi fees and other transportation expenses will be reimbursed.  
4. If driving, mileage will be reimbursed at current IRS rates.  
5. Hotel room will be covered in full for Board Member.  

a. If, however, the lodging is in connection with a conference or organized educational 

Page 170 of 292

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=32103.


activity that does not qualify as a meeting and is conducted in compliance with 
California Government Code, Section 54952.2(c), including ethics training required by 
California Government Code, Section 53234, then lodging costs shall not exceed the 
maximum group rate published by the conference or activity sponsor as long as the 
group rate is available to the Board member at the time of booking. If the group rate is 
not available, then the Board member shall use comparable lodging.  

6. Tuition fees for Board Members will be paid in full.  
7. Conference educational materials (books, audio tapes, etc.) not to exceed $50.  
8. Receipts are required for all reimbursable expenses.  
9. Board members shall use government and group rates offered by a provider of transportation 

or lodging services for travel and lodging when available.  
10. All expenses that do not fall within the adopted travel reimbursement policy of the 

IRS reimbursable rates shall be approved by the Board, in a public meeting before the expense 
is incurred.  

E.D. Upon election or appointment to a seat on the Board of Directors of the Tahoe Forest Hospital 
District, the appropriate paperwork which is necessary to complete for enrollment will be given to the 
Board Member by the Human Resources Department. Coverage will begin on the first of the month 
following election or appointment to the Board of Directors and completion of the necessary 
enrollment forms  

Related Policies/Forms: 

References: California Government Code, §§ 53232.2(d), (e), 53232.3(a), 53235(a), (b) (d). §§54950 - 
54963 ; California Health & Safety Code, Section 32103  

Policy Owner: Clerk of the Board 

Approved by: Chief Executive Officer 

 

Page 171 of 292

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=2.&title=5.&part=1.&chapter=9.&article=
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=32103.


© Wipfli LLP

O c t o b e r  2 6 t h , 2 0 1 7

Page 172 of 292



© Wipfli LLP

Rural  Health Cl inic 
Presentat ion

S t e v e n  R o u s s o ,  P a r t n e r

Page 173 of 292



© Wipfli LLP

Rural  Health Cl inic 

Introduction/Requirements

Page 174 of 292



© Wipfli LLP

RHC Intro/Requirements

4

What Is a Rural Health Clinic?

The rural health clinic certification is a designation that clinics providing 
primary care in certain rural, underserved areas can obtain from the Centers 
for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), which provides an alternative, cost-
based reimbursement system (or APM) for treating Medicare and Medicaid 
beneficiaries.

Page 175 of 292



© Wipfli LLP

RHC Intro/Requirements (cont)

5

General Requirements for RHC Certification

• Located in a rural area (non-urbanized defined by the Census Bureau)

• Current underserved designation (HPSA or MUA)

• Primarily outpatient primary care services

• Midlevel practitioner at least 50% of time clinic is open

− At least one midlevel practitioner is employed

• Certain lab services must be able to be performed

Page 176 of 292



© Wipfli LLP

RHC Intro/Requirements (cont)

6

What Is Different About RHC Billing?

RHC services are billed and reimbursed by Medicare and Medicaid in under 
an all-inclusive payment rate regardless of the type of practitioner (physician 
vs. midlevel) or the complexity of services performed (99212 vs. 99215, E/M 
vs. surgical procedure).

RHC services are billed to Medicare on the UB-04 claim format instead of the 
CMS 1500 form often used for billing physician services.

Page 177 of 292



© Wipfli LLP

RHC Allowable Providers

7

• Allowable RHC Providers include:

− MD or DO

− PA, NP or CNM

− LCSW

− Clinical Psychologist

− Chiropractor

− Optometrist

− Dentist

− Specialists

Page 178 of 292



© Wipfli LLP

RHC Intro/Requirements

8

• Provider based versus free-standing RHC’s

• Medicare: No upper payment limit for RHCs that are provider-based to a 
hospital with less than 50 beds!

• Medi-Cal: no cost limit regardless of bed size

• Result: RHC PPS rates could be $200 to $300 a visit (based on costs per 
visit) 

• Advantage: Getting reimbursed for overhead

Page 179 of 292



© Wipfli LLP

RHC - Advantages/Disadvantages

9

• Advantages:

• Disadvantages:

• Why develop RHC’s?

Page 180 of 292



© Wipfli LLP

Questions?

10Page 181 of 292



© Wipfli LLP

Contact Information

11

Steven Rousso, MBA, MPA, Partner
510.768.0066
Health Care Practice
srousso@wipfli.com

Page 182 of 292



© Wipfli LLP 12

www.wipfli.com/healthcare

Page 183 of 292



 1 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-07 

 
RESOLUTION TO SUBMIT A RURAL HEALTH CLINIC APPLICATION FOR 

PEDIATRIC CLINIC, “TAHOE FOREST MULTISPECIALITY CLINIC –
PEDIATRICS” 

 
 

WHEREAS, TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT (“District”) is a hospital district duly 
organized and existing under the “Local Health Care District Law” of the State of California; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District desires to create a rural 
healthcare clinic for the benefit of its communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has delegated authority to the Director of Operations of 
the Multispecialty Clinics to handle all decisions concerning the daily operation of Tahoe 
Forest Multispecialty Clinic - Pediatrics; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Directors of the Tahoe Forest 
Hospital District hereby would submit an application for the creation of a rural health clinic 
specializing in Pediatrics and operating as an Outpatient department of the hospital, under the 
hospital license. 
  
PASSED AND ADOPTED at the meeting of the Tahoe Forest Hospital District Board of 
Directors held on the 26th day of October, 2017 by the following vote:  

 
 
AYES:   
  
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:   

 
 
 

ATTEST:    
    

       
       
       
       
            
Charles Zipkin, M.D.    Alyce Wong   

 President, Board of Directors   Secretary, Board of Directors 
Tahoe Forest Hospital District    Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

Page 184 of 292



Page 185 of 292



Page 186 of 292



Page 187 of 292



Page 188 of 292



Page 189 of 292



Page 190 of 292



Page 191 of 292



Page 192 of 292



Page 193 of 292



Page 194 of 292



Page 195 of 292



Page 196 of 292



Page 197 of 292



Page 198 of 292



Page 199 of 292



Page 200 of 292



Page 201 of 292



Page 202 of 292



Page 203 of 292



Page 204 of 292



Page 205 of 292



Page 206 of 292



Page 207 of 292



Page 208 of 292



Page 209 of 292



Page 210 of 292



Page 211 of 292



Page 212 of 292



Page 213 of 292



Page 214 of 292



Page 215 of 292



Page 216 of 292



 

 
184220.4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BYLAWS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 
 

Page 217 of 292



 

i 
184220.4 

Table of Contents 

ARTICLE I.  NAME, AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE ................................................................... 1 

Section 1.  Name ..................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 2.  Authority ................................................................................................................ 1 

Section 3.  Purpose and Operating Policies ............................................................................. 1 

ARTICLE II.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS ...................................................................................... 2 

Section 1.  Election .................................................................................................................. 2 

Section 2.  Responsibilities ...................................................................................................... 2 

A.  Philosophy and Objectives ......................................................................................... 2 

B.  Programs and Services .............................................................................................. 2 

C.  Organization and Staffing ........................................................................................... 3 

D  Medical Staff ............................................................................................................... 3 

E.  Finance ...................................................................................................................... 3 

F.  Grounds, Facilities and Equipment ............................................................................. 4 

G.  External Relations ...................................................................................................... 4 

H.  Assessment and Continuous Improvement of Quality of Care .................................... 4 

I.    Strategic Planning ............................................................................................. 4 

Section 3.  Powers ................................................................................................................... 4 

A.  Overall Operations ..................................................................................................... 4 

B.  Medical Staff .............................................................................................................. 5 

C.  Auxiliary ..................................................................................................................... 5 

D.  Other Adjuncts ........................................................................................................... 5 

E.  Delegation of Powers ................................................................................................. 5 

F.  Provisions to Prevail ................................................................................................... 5 

G.  Resolutions and Ordinances ...................................................................................... 5 

H.  Residual Powers ........................................................................................................ 5 

I.  Grievance Process ...................................................................................................... 5 

Section 4.  Vacancies .............................................................................................................. 6 

Section 5.  Meetings ................................................................................................................ 6 

A.  Regular Meetings ....................................................................................................... 6 

B.  Special Meetings ........................................................................................................ 6 

C.  Policies and Procedures ............................................................................................ 7 

Page 218 of 292



 

ii 
184220.4 

Section 6.  Quorum .................................................................................................................. 7 

Section 7.  Medical Staff Representation ................................................................................. 7 

Section 8.  Director Compensation and Reimbursement of Expenses ..................................... 7 

Section 9.  Board Self-Evaluation ............................................................................................ 8 

ARTICLE III.  OFFICERS ........................................................................................................... 8 

Section 1.  Officers .................................................................................................................. 8 

Section 2.  Election of Officers ................................................................................................. 8 

Section 3.  Duties of Officers ................................................................................................... 8 

A.  President .................................................................................................................... 8 

B.  Vice-President ............................................................................................................ 8 

C.  Secretary ................................................................................................................... 8 

D.  Treasurer ................................................................................................................... 8 

E.  Clerk .......................................................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE IV.  COMMITTEES ..................................................................................................... 9 
Section 1.  Special Committees ............................................................................................. 9 

Section 2.  Standing Committees .......................................................................................... 9 

A.  Joint Conference Committee ...................................................................................... 9 

B.  Finance Committee .................................................................................................... 9 

C.  Governance Committee ........................................................................................... 10 

D.  Personnel Committee............................................................................................... 11 

E.  Retirement Plan Committee ..................................................................................... 11 

F.  Quality Committee .................................................................................................... 11 

G.  Community Benefit Committee ................................................................................ 12 

ARTICLE V.  MANAGEMENT .................................................................................................. 13 

Section 1.  Chief Executive Officer ...................................................................................... 13 

Section 2.  Authority and Responsibility............................................................................... 13 
ARTICLE VI TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL .............................................................................. 16 

Section 1.  Establishment .................................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE VII.  INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL .................................................. 17 

Section 1.  Establishment .................................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE VIII.  MEDICAL STAFF ............................................................................................. 18 

Section 1.  Nature of Medical Staff Membership .................................................................. 18 

Section 2.  Qualification for Membership ............................................................................. 18 

Section 3.  Organization and Bylaws ................................................................................... 18 

Page 219 of 292



 

iii 
184220.4 

Section 4.  Appointment to Medical Staff ............................................................................. 19 

Section 5.  Staff Meetings:  Medical Records ...................................................................... 19 

Section 6.  Medical Quality Assurance ................................................................................ 20 

Section 7.  Hearings and Appeals ....................................................................................... 20 

A.  Time for Appeal ........................................................................................................ 20 

B.  Grounds for Appeal .................................................................................................. 20 

C.  Time, Place and Notice ............................................................................................ 21 

D.  Appeal Board ........................................................................................................... 21 

E.  Appeal Procedure .................................................................................................... 21 

F.  Decision ................................................................................................................... 22 

G.  Right to One Hearing ............................................................................................... 22 

H.  Review Initiated By Board of Directors ..................................................................... 22 

ARTICLE IX.  AUXILIARY ........................................................................................................ 22 
ARTICLE XI.  REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS ...................................................... 22 

ADOPTION OF BYLAWS ......................................................................................................... 23 
REVISION HISTORY ................................................................................................................ 23 
 

  

Page 220 of 292



 

1 
184220.4 

BYLAWS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 OF 
 TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 
 Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 32104, 32125, 32128, and 32150 of the 
Health and Safety Code of the State of California, the Board of Directors of TAHOE 
FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT adopts these Bylaws for the government of TAHOE 
FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT. 

 ARTICLE I.   NAME, AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 

Section I.   Name. 

The name of this District shall be "TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT". 

Section 2.   Authority. 

A.   This District, having been established May 2, 1949, by vote of the residents 
of said District under the provisions of Division 23 of the Health and Safety Code of the 
State of California, otherwise known and referred to herein as "The Local Health Care 
District Law", and ever since that time having been operated there under, these Bylaws 
are adopted in conformance therewith, and subject to the provisions thereof. 

B.   In the event of any conflict between these Bylaws and "The Local Health 
Care District Law", the latter shall prevail. 

C.   These Bylaws shall be known as the "District Bylaws". 

D.   Non-Discrimination:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not 
discriminate in admissions, provisions of service, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of age; race; color; creed; ethnicity; religion; national origin; 
marital status; sex; sexual orientation; gender identity or expression; disability; 
association; veteran or military status; or any other basis prohibited by federal, state, or 
local law. 

 

Section 3.   Purpose and Operating Policies. 

A.   Purpose.    

Tahoe Forest Hospital District will strive to be the best mountain health system in 
the nation.  We exist to make a difference in the health of our communities through 
excellence and compassion in all we do.   

B.   Operating Policies.    

In order to accomplish the Mission of the District, the Board of Directors 

Page 221 of 292



 

2 
184220.4 

establishes the following Operating Policies: 

1. Through planned development and responsible management, the assets 
of the District will be used to meet the service needs of the area in an efficient and cost 
effective manner, after evaluation of available alternatives and other resources available 
to the District.  This may include the development and operation of programs, services 
and facilities at any location within or without the District for the benefit of the people 
served by the District. 

2. The District shall dedicate itself to the maximum level of quality consistent 
with sound fiscal management, and community based needs. 

4. 3. Improvement of the health status of the area will be the primary 
emphasis of services offered by the District.  In addition, the District may elect to 
provide other programs of human service outside of the traditional realm of health care, 
where unmet human service needs have been identified through the planning process. 

ARTICLE II.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors: 

Section l.   Election. 

There shall be five members of the Board of Directors who shall be elected for 
four year terms as provided in "The Local Health Care District Law". 

Section 2.   Responsibilities. 

Provides oversight for planning, operation, and evaluation of all District 
programs, services and related activities consistent with the District Bylaws. 

A.   Philosophy and Objectives.    

Considers the health requirements of the region and the responsibilities that the 
District should assume in helping to meet them. 

B.   Programs and Services. 

1. Takes action on recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer or 
designee with regard to long and short range plans for the development of programs 
and services. 

2. Provides oversight to the Chief Executive Officer in the implementation of 
programs and service plans. 

3. Takes action on board policies and other policies brought forth by the 
Chief Executive Officer or designee. 

4. Evaluates the results of programs and services on the basis of previously 

Page 222 of 292



 

3 
184220.4 

established objectives and requirements.  Receives reports from the Chief Executive 
Officer or designees and directs the Chief Executive Officer to plan and take appropriate 
actions, where warranted. 

C.   Organization and Staffing. 

1. Selects and appoints the Chief Executive Officer. 

2. Evaluates the continuing effectiveness of the organization. 

D.   Medical Staff. 

1. Appoints all Medical Staff members. 

2. Ensures that the District Medical Staff is organized to support the 
objectives of the District. 

3. Reviews and takes final action on appeals involving Medical Staff 
disciplinary action. 

4. Approves Medical Staff Bylaws and proposed revisions. 

E.   Finance. 

1. Assumes responsibility for the financial soundness and success of the 
District and its wholly owned subsidiaries. 

2. Assumes responsibility for the appropriate use of endowment funds and of 
other gifts to the District.  Exercises trusteeship responsibility to see that funds are used 
for intended purposes. 

3. Adopts annual budgets of the District, including both operating and capital 
expenditure budgets. 

4. Receives and reviews periodic financial reports.  Considers comments 
and recommendations of its Finance Committee or management staff.   

5. Receives and reviews reports of the District's auditors. 

6. Approves policies which govern the financial affairs of the District. 

7. Authorizes officers of the District to act for the District in the execution of 
financial transactions. 

F.   Grounds, Facilities and Equipment. 

1. Approves plans for development, expansion, modernization and 
replacement of the District's grounds, facilities, major equipment and other tangible 
assets. 

Page 223 of 292



 

4 
184220.4 

2. Approves the acquisition, sale and lease of real property. 

G.   External Relations.    

Assumes ultimate responsibility for representing the communities served by the 
District and representing the District to the communities served. 

H.  Assessment And Continuous Improvement Of Quality Of Care 

Ensures that the proper organizational environment and systems exist to 
continuously improve the quality of care provided. Responsible for a system wide quality 
assessment and performance improvement program that reflects all departments and 
services. Reviews Quality Assessment Reports focused on indicators related to 
improving health outcomes and the prevention and reduction of medical errors. 
Provides oversight to and annually approves the written Quality Assurance / Process 
Improvement plan.  

I. Strategic Planning.  

1. Oversees the strategic planning process. 

2. Establishes long range goals and objectives for the District’s programs 
and facilities.   

Section 3.   Powers. 

A.   Overall Operations.    

The Board of Directors shall determine policies and shall have control of, and be 
responsible for, the overall operations and affairs of this District and its facilities. 

B.   Medical Staff.    

The Board of Directors shall authorize the formation of a Medical Staff to be 
known as "The Medical Staff of Tahoe Forest Hospital District".  The Board of Directors 
shall determine membership on the Medical Staff, as well as the Bylaws for the 
governance of said Medical Staff, as provided in ARTICLE X of these Bylaws. 

C.   Auxiliary.   

The Board of Directors may authorize the formation of service organizations from 
time to time as needed (“Auxiliary”), the Bylaws of which shall be approved by the Board 
of Directors. 

D.   Other Affiliated or Subordinate Organizations.    

The Board of Directors may authorize the formation of other affiliated or 
subordinate organizations which it may deem necessary to carry out the purposes of the 
District; the Bylaws of such organizations shall be approved by the Board of Directors. 

Page 224 of 292



 

5 
184220.4 

E.   Delegation of Powers.    

The Medical Staff, Auxiliary, and any other affiliated or subordinate organizations 
shall have those powers set forth in their respective Bylaws.  All powers and functions 
not set forth in their respective Bylaws are to be considered residual powers still vested 
in the Board of Directors. 

F.   Provisions to Prevail.    

These District Bylaws shall override any provisions to the contrary in the Bylaws, 
or Rules and Regulations of the Medical Staff, Auxiliary or any affiliated or subordinate 
organizations.  In case of conflict, the provisions of these District Bylaws shall prevail. 

G.   Resolutions and Ordinances.    

From time to time, the Board of Directors may pass resolutions regarding specific 
policy issues, which resolutions may establish policy for the operations of this District. 

H.   Residual Powers.    

The Board of Directors shall have all of the other powers given to it by "The Local 
Health Care District Law" and other applicable provisions of law. 

I.    Grievance Process 

The Board of Directors may delegate the responsibility to review and resolve 
grievances.  

 Section 4.   Vacancies. 

Any vacancy upon the Board of Directors shall be filled by appointment by the 
remaining members of the Board of Directors within sixty (60) days of the vacancy.  
Notice of the vacancy shall be posted in at least three (3) places within the District at 
least fifteen (l5) days before the appointment is made.  The District shall notify the 
elections officials for Nevada and Placer Counties of the vacancy no later than fifteen 
(15) days following either the date on which the District Board is notified of the vacancy 
or the effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later, and of the appointment no later 
than fifteen (15) days after the appointment.  In lieu of making an appointment, the 
remaining members of the Board of Directors may within sixty (60) days of the vacancy 
call an election to fill the vacancy.  If the vacancy is not filled by the Board of Directors 
or an election called within sixty (60) days, the Board of Supervisors of the County 
representing the larger portion of the Hospital District area in which an election to fill the 
vacancy would be held may fill the vacancy, within ninety (90) days of the vacancy, or 
may order the District to call an election.  If the vacancy is not filled or an election called 
for within ninety (90) days of the vacancy, the District shall call an election to be held on 
the next available election date.  Persons appointed to fill a vacancy shall hold office 
until the next District general election that is scheduled 130 or more days after the date 
the District and the elections officials for Nevada and Placer Counties were notified of 

Page 225 of 292



 

6 
184220.4 

the vacancy and thereafter until the person elected at such election to fill the vacancy 
has been qualified, but persons elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office for the 
unexpired balance of the term of office. 

Section 5.   Meetings. 

A.   Regular Meetings.    

Unless otherwise specified at the preceding regular or adjourned regular 
meeting, regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the fourth Thursday 
of each month at 4:00 PM at a location within the Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
Boundaries.  The Board shall take or arrange for the taking of minutes at each regular 
meeting.  

B.   Special Meetings.    

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any time and at a 
place designated in the notice and located within the District, except as provided in the 
Brown Act, upon the call of the President, or by not fewer than three (3) members of the 
Board of Directors, and upon written notice to each Director specifying the business to 
be transacted, which notice shall be delivered personally or by mail and shall be 
received at least twenty-four (24) hours before the time of such meeting, provided that 
such notice may be waived by written waiver executed by each member of the Board of 
Directors. Notice shall also be provided within such time period to local newspapers and 
radio stations which have requested notice of meetings.  Such notice must also be 
posted twenty-four (24) hours before the meeting in a location which is freely accessible 
to the public.  In the event of an emergency situation involving matters upon which 
prompt action is necessary due to disruption or threatened disruption of District services 
(including work stoppage, crippling disaster or other activity which severely impairs 
public health, safety or both), the Board may hold a special meeting without complying 
with the foregoing notice requirements, provided at least one (l) hour prior telephone 
notice shall be given to local newspapers and radio stations which have requested 
notice of meetings, and such meetings shall otherwise be in compliance with the 
provisions of Government Code Section 54956.5.  The Board shall take or arrange for 
the taking of minutes at each special meeting.  

C.   Policies and Procedures.    

The Board may from time to time adopt policies and procedures governing the 
conduct of Board meetings and District business.  All sessions of the Board of Directors, 
whether regular or special, shall be open to the public in accordance with the Brown Act 
(commencing with Government Code Section 54950), unless a closed session is 
permitted under the Brown Act or Health and Safety Code Sections 32106 and 32155 or 
other applicable law.  

Section 6.   Quorum. 

The presence of a majority of the Board of Directors shall be necessary to 

Page 226 of 292



 

7 
184220.4 

constitute a quorum to transact any business at any regular or special meeting, except 
to adjourn the meeting to a future date. 

Section 7.   Medical Staff Representation. 

The Chief of the Medical Staff shall be appointed as a special representative to 
the Board of Directors without voting power and shall attend the meetings of the Board 
of Directors.  In the event the Chief of Staff cannot attend a meeting, the Vice-Chief of 
the Medical Staff or designee shall attend in the Chief of Staff’s absence.   

Section 8.  Director Compensation and Reimbursement Of Expenses. 

The Board of Directors shall be compensated in accordance with ABD-03 Board 
Compensation and Reimbursement policy.  

Each member of the Board of Directors shall be allowed his or her actual 
necessary traveling and incidental expenses incurred in the performance of official 
business of the District as approved by the Board or Chief Executive Officer, per Board 
policy. 

Section 9.  Board Self-Evaluation. 

 The Board of Directors will monitor and discuss its process and performance at 
least annually.  The self-evaluation process will include comparison of Board activity to 
its manner of governance policies. 

ARTICLE III.   OFFICERS 

Section l.   Officers. 

The officers of the Board of Directors shall be President, Vice-President, 
Secretary and Treasurer who shall be members of the Board. 

Section 2.   Election of Officers. 

The officers of the Board of Directors shall be chosen every year by the Board of 
Directors in December of the preceding calendar year and shall serve at the pleasure of 
the Board.  The person holding the office of President of the Board of Directors shall not 
serve successive terms, unless by unanimous vote of the Board of Directors taken at a 
regularly scheduled meeting.  In the event of a vacancy in any office, an election shall 
be held at the next regular meeting following the effective date of the vacancy to elect 
the officer to fill such office. 

Section 3.   Duties of Officers. 

A.  President.   Shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors.  Shall 
sign as President, on behalf of the District, all instruments in writing which he/she has 
been authorized and obliged by the Board to sign and such other duties as set forth in 

Page 227 of 292



 

8 
184220.4 

these Bylaws.   

B.  Vice-President.   The Vice-President shall perform the functions of the 
President in case of the President's absence or inability to act. 

C.  Secretary.   The Secretary shall ensure minutes of all meetings of the Board 
of Directors are recorded and shall see that all records of the District are kept and 
preserved. 

D.  Treasurer.    

The Treasurer will serve as the chairperson of the Board Finance Committee and 
shall ensure the Board’s attention to financial integrity of the District. 

 

 ARTICLE IV.   COMMITTEES 

No Committee shall have the power to bind the District, unless the Board provides 
otherwise in writing. 

Section l.   Ad Hoc Committees. 

Ad Hoc Committees may be appointed by the President of the Board of Directors 
from time to time as he/she deems necessary or expedient.  No Committee shall have 
the power to bind the District, unless the Board provides otherwise in writing, but shall 
perform such functions as shall be assigned to them by the President, and shall function 
for the period of time specified by the President at the time of appointment or until 
determined to be no longer necessary and disbanded by the President of the Board of 
Directors.  The President shall appoint each Committee chair. 

Section 2.   Standing Committees. 

Standing Committees and their respective charters will be affirmed annually by 
resolution, duly adopted by the Board of Directors.    

The President shall recommend appointment of the members of these 
committees and the Chair thereof, subject to the approval of the Board by majority of 
Directors present.  Committee appointments shall be for a period of one (1) year and 
will be made annually at the December Board meeting, following the election of Board 
Officers.   

  

 

ARTICLE V.   MANAGEMENT 

Section l.   Chief Executive Officer. 

Page 228 of 292



 

9 
184220.4 

The Board of Directors shall select and employ a Chief Executive Officer who 
shall act as its executive officer in the management of the District.  The Chief Executive 
Officer shall be given the necessary authority to be held responsible for the 
administration of the District in all its activities and entities, subject only to the policies 
as may be adopted from time to time, and orders as may be issued by the Board of 
Directors or any of its committees to which it has delegated power for such action by a 
writing.  The Chief Executive Officer shall act as the duly authorized representative of 
the Board of Directors. 

Section 2.   Authority and Responsibility. 

The duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer shall  be outlined in the 
Employment Agreement and job description.  Other duties may be assigned by the 
Board.  Chief Executive Officer, personally or through delegation, hires, assigns 
responsibility, counsel, evaluates and (as required) terminates all District employees. 

 

 

ARTICLE VI.  TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL 

 Section 1.   Establishment 

 TheDistrict owns and operates Tahoe Forest Hospital (TFH), which shall be 
primarily engaged in providing, including but not limited to, Emergency Services, 
Inpatient/Observation Care, Critical Care, Diagnostic Imaging Services, Laboratory 
Services, Surgical Services, Obstetrical Services and Long Term Care Services.   

   

   

ARTICLE VII.  INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL 

Section 1.   Establishment 

 TheDistrict owns and operates Incline Village Community Hospital (IVCH), which 
shall be primarily engaged in providing, including but not limited to, Emergency 
Services, Inpatient/Observation Care, Diagnostic Imaging Services , Laboratory 
Services, and Surgical Services to patients. 

  

ARTICLE VIII.   MEDICAL STAFF 

Section 1.   Nature of Medical Staff Membership. 

Membership on the Medical Staff of Tahoe Forest Hospital District is a privilege 

Page 229 of 292



 

10 
184220.4 

which shall be extended only to professionally competent practitioners who continuously 
meet the qualifications, standards and requirements set forth herein and in the Bylaws 
of the Medical Staff. 

Section 2.   Qualifications for Membership. 

A. Only physicians, dentists or podiatrists who: 

1. Demonstrate and document their licensure, experience, education, 
training, current professional competence, good judgment, ethics, reputation and 
physical and mental health status so as to establish to the satisfaction of the Medical 
Staff and the Board of Directors that they are professionally qualified and that patients 
treated by them can reasonably expect to receive high quality medical care; 

2. Demonstrate that they adhere to the ethics of their respective professions 
and that they are able to work cooperatively with others so as not to adversely affect 
patient care or District operations; 

3. Provide verification of medical malpractice insurance coverage; 

4. Establish that they are willing to participate in and properly discharge 
those responsibilities determined according to the Medical Staff Bylaws and shall be 
deemed to possess basic qualifications for membership on the Medical Staff.  No 
practitioner shall be entitled to membership on the Medical Staff, assignment to a 
particular staff category, or be able to exercise particular clinical privileges solely by 
virtue of the fact that he/she is duly licensed to practice in California, Nevada, or any 
other state, or that he/she is a member of any particular professional organization, or is 
certified by any particular specialty board, or that he/she had or presently has, 
membership or privileges at this or another health care facility, or requires a hospital 
affiliation in order to participate on health plan provider panels, to obtain or maintain 
malpractice insurance coverage, or to pursue other personal or professional business 
interests unrelated to the treatment of patients at this facility and the furtherance of this 
facility’s programs and services. 

Section 3.   Organization and Bylaws. 

The Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and policies of the Medical Staff shall be 
subject to approval of the Board of Directors of the District, and amendments thereto 
shall be effective only upon approval of such amendments by the Board of Directors, 
which shall not be withheld unreasonably.  Neither the Medical Staff nor the Board of 
Directors may unilaterally amend the Medical Staff Bylaws or Rules and Regulations.  
The Bylaws of the Medical Staff shall set forth the procedure by which eligibility for 
Medical Staff membership and establishment of clinical privileges shall be determined, 
including standards for qualification.  Such Bylaws shall provide that the Medical Staff, 
or a committee or committees thereof, shall study the qualifications of all applicants and 
shall establish and delineate clinical privileges and shall submit to the Board of Directors 
recommendations thereon and shall provide for reappointment no less frequently than 
biennially.  The Medical Staff shall also adopt Rules and Regulations or policies that 

Page 230 of 292



 

11 
184220.4 

provide associated details consistent with its Bylaws, as it deems necessary to 
implement more specifically the general principles established in the Bylaws. 

 

Section 4.   Appointment to Medical Staff 

All appointments and reappointments to the Medical Staff shall be made by the 
Board of Directors as provided by the standards of the Healthcare Facility Accreditation 
Program.  Final responsibility for appointment, reappointment, new clinical privileges, 
rejection or modification of any recommendation of the Medical Staff shall rest with the 
Board of Directors.   

All applications for appointment and reappointment to the Medical Staff shall be 
processed by the Medical Staff in such manner as shall be provided by the Bylaws of 
the Medical Staff and, upon completion of processing by the Medical Staff, the Medical 
Staff shall make a report and recommendation regarding such application to the Board 
of Directors.  This recommendation will also include the request by the practitioner for 
clinical privileges, and the Medical Staff's recommendation concerning these privileges. 

Upon receipt of the report and recommendation of the Medical Staff, the Board of 
Directors adopt, reject or modify a favorable recommendation of the Medical Executive 
Committee, or shall refer the recommendation back to the Medical Executive Committee 
for further consideration, stating the reasons for the referral and setting a time limit 
within which the Medical Executive Committee shall respond.  

If the Board of Directors is inclined to reject or modify a favorable 
recommendation, the Board shall refer the matter back to the Medical Executive 
Committee for further review and comments, which may include a second 
recommendation.  The Executive Committee’s response shall be considered by the 
Board before adopting a resolution.   
 
 

If the Board’s resolution constitutes grounds for a hearing under Article VII of the 
Medical Staff Bylaws, the Chief Executive Officer shall promptly inform the applicant, 
and he/she shall be entitled to the procedural rights as provided in that Article. 

 

In the case of an adverse Medical Executive Committee recommendation or an 
adverse Board decision, the Board shall take final action in the matter only after the 
applicant has exhausted or has waived his/her procedural rights under the Medical Staff 
Bylaws.  Action thus taken shall be the conclusive decision of the Board, except that the 
Board may defer final determination by referring the matter back for reconsideration.  
Any such referral shall state the reasons therefore, shall set a reasonable time limit 
within which a reply to the Board of Directors shall be made, and may include a directive 
that additional hearings be conducted to clarify issues which are in doubt.  After 

Page 231 of 292



 

12 
184220.4 

receiving the new recommendation and any new evidence, the Board shall make a final 
decision. 

 
Conflict Resolution.  The Board of Directors shall give great weight to the actions 

and recommendations of the Medical Executive Committee and in no event shall act in 
an arbitrary and capricious manner. 

 
The Governing Body may delegate decision-making authority to a committee of 

the Governing Body; however, any final decision of the Governing Body committee must 
be subject to ratification by the full Governing Body at its next regularly scheduled 
meeting. 

 
Section 5.  Staff Meetings:  Medical Records 

The Medical Staff shall be self-governing with respect to the professional work 
performed in the Hospital.  The Medical Staff shall meet in accordance with the 
minimum requirements of the Healthcare Facility Accreditation Program.  Accurate, 
legible and complete medical records shall be prepared and maintained for all patients 
and shall be the basis for review and analysis. 

For purposes of this section, medical records include, but are not limited to, 
identification data, personal and family history, history of present illness, review of 
systems, physical examination, special examinations, professional or working diagnosis, 
treatment, gross and microscopic pathological findings, progress notes, final diagnosis, 
condition on discharge and other matters as the Medical Staff shall determine. 

Section 6.  Medical Quality Assurance 

The Medical Staff shall, in cooperation with the administration of the District, 
establish a comprehensive and integrated quality assurance and risk control program 
for the District which shall assure identification of problems, assessment and 
prioritization of such problems, implementation of remedial actions and decisions with 
regard to such problems, monitoring of activities to assure desired results, and 
documentation of the undertaken activities.  The Board of Directors shall require, on a 
quarterly basis, reports of the Medical Staff's and District's quality assurance activities. 

Section 7.  Hearings and Appeals 

Appellate review of any action, decision or recommendation of the Medical 
Staff affecting the professional privileges of any member of, or applicant for membership 
on, the Medical Staff is available before the Board of Directors.  This appellate review 
shall be conducted consistent with the requirements of Business and Professions Code 
Section 809.4 and in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Medical Staff 
Bylaws.  Nothing in these Bylaws shall abrogate the obligation of the District and the 
Medical Staff to comply with the requirements of Business and Professions Code 
Sections 809 through 809.9, inclusive. Accordingly, discretion is granted to the Medical 
Staff and Board of Directors to create a hearing process which provides for the least 

Page 232 of 292



 

13 
184220.4 

burdensome level of formality in the process while still providing a fair review and to 
interpret the Medical Staff Bylaws in that light.  The Medical Staff, Board of Directors, 
and their officers, committees and agents hereby constitute themselves as peer review 
bodies under the Federal Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986 and the 
California peer review hearing laws and claim all privileges and immunities afforded by 
the federal and state laws. 

 
If adverse action as described in these provisions is taken or recommended, the 

practitioner must exhaust the remedies afforded by the Medical Staff Bylaws before 
resorting to legal action. 

 

The rules relating to appeals to the Board of Directors as set forth in the Medical 
Staff Bylaws are as follows; capitalized terms have the meaning defined by the Medical 
Staff Bylaws: 

A. Time For Appeal    

Within ten (10) days after receipt of the decision of the Hearing Committee, either 
the Practitioner or the Medical Executive Committee may request an appellate review.  
A written request for such review shall be delivered to the Chief Executive Officer and 
the other party in the hearing.  If a request for appellate review is not received by the 
Chief Executive Officer within such period, the decision of the Hearing Committee shall 
thereupon become final, except if modified or reversed by the Board of Directors. 

It shall be the obligation of the party requesting appellate review to produce the 
record of the Hearing Committee’s proceedings.  If the record is not produced within a 
reasonable period, as determined by the Board of Directors or its authorized 
representative, appellate rights shall be deemed waived 

In the event of a waiver of appellate rights by a Practitioner, if the Board of 
Directors is inclined to take action which is more adverse than that taken or 
recommended by the Medical Executive Committee, the Board of Directors must 
consult with the Medical Executive Committee before taking such action.  If after such 
consultation the Board of Directors is still inclined to take such action, then the 
Practitioner shall be so notified.  The notice shall include a brief summary of the reasons 
for the Board’s contemplated action, including a reference to any factual findings in the 
Hearing Committee’s Decision that support the action.  The Practitioner shall be given 
ten (10) days from receipt of that notice within which to request appellate review, 
notwithstanding his or her earlier waiver of appellate rights.  The grounds for appeal and 
the appellate procedure shall be as described below.  However, even If the Practitioner 
declines to appeal any of the Hearing Committee’s factual findings, he or she shall still 
be given an opportunity to argue, in person and in writing, that the contemplated action 
which is more adverse than that taken or recommended by the Medical Executive 
Committee is not reasonable and warranted.  The action taken by the Board of Directors 
after following this procedure shall be the final action of the Hospital. 

Page 233 of 292



 

14 
184220.4 

B. Grounds For Appeal    
A written request for an appeal shall include an identification of the grounds of 

appeal, and a clear and concise statement of the facts in support of the appeal.  The 
recognized grounds for appeal from a Hearing Committee decision are: 

1. substantial noncompliance with the standards or procedures required by the 
Bylaws, or applicable law, which has created demonstrable prejudice; or 

2. the factual findings of the Hearing Committee are not supported by substantial 
evidence based upon the hearing record or such additional information as may 
be permitted pursuant to this section; or  

3. The Hearing Committee’s failure to sustain an action or recommendation of the 
Medical Executive Committee that, based on the Hearing Committee’s factual 
findings, was reasonable and warranted. 

C.  Time, Place and Notice    
The appeal board shall, within thirty (30) days after receipt of a request for 

appellate review, schedule a review date and cause each side to be given notice of 
time, place and date of the appellate review.  The appellate review shall not commence 
less than thirty (30) or more than sixty (60) days from the date of notice.  The time for 
appellate review may be extended by the appeal board for good cause. 

.   

D.  Appeal Board   
The Board of Directors may sit as the appeal board, or it may delegate that 

function to an appeal board which shall be composed of not less than three (3) 
members of the Board of Directors.  Knowledge of the matter involved shall not 
preclude any person from serving as a member of the appeal board so long as that 
person did not take part in a prior hearing on the action or recommendation being 
challenged.  The appeal board may select an attorney to assist it in the proceeding, but 
that attorney shall not be entitled to vote with respect to the appeal. 

E.  Appeal Procedure   
The proceedings by the appeal board shall be in the nature of an appellate 

review based upon the record of the proceedings before the Hearing Committee.  
However, the appeal board may accept additional oral or written evidence, subject to a 
foundational showing that such evidence could not have been made available to the 
Hearing Committee in the exercise of reasonable diligence, and subject to the same 
rights of cross-examination or confrontation that are provided at a hearing.  The appeal 
board shall also have the discretion to remand the matter to the Hearing Committee for 
the taking of further evidence or for clarification or reconsideration of the Hearing 
Committee’s decision.  In such instances, the Hearing Committee shall report back to 
the appeal board, within such reasonable time limits as the appeal board imposes.  
Each party shall have the right to be represented by legal counsel before the appeal 
board, to present a written argument to the appeal board, to personally appear and 
make oral argument and respond to questions in accordance with the procedure 
established by the appeal board.  After the arguments have been submitted, the appeal 
board shall conduct its deliberations outside the presence of the parties and their 

Page 234 of 292



 

15 
184220.4 

representatives. 
 

F.  Decision    

Within thirty (30) days after the submission of arguments as provided above, the appeal 
board shall send a written recommendation to the Board of Directors.  The appeal board 
may recommend, and the Board of Directors may decide, to affirm, reverse or modify 
the decision of the Hearing Committee.  The decision of the Board shall constitute the 
final decision of the Hospital and shall become effective immediately upon notice to the 
parties.  The parties shall be provided a copy of the appeal board’s recommendation 
along with a copy of the Board of Director’s final decision. 

G.  Right To One Hearing    

No practitioner shall be entitled to more than one (1) evidentiary hearing and one 
(1) appellate review on any adverse action or recommendation. 

H. Exception to Hearing Rights 

Exclusive Contracts 

The hearing rights described in this Article shall not apply as a result of a 
decision to close or continue closure of a department or service pursuant to an 
exclusive contract or to transfer an exclusive contract, or as a result of action by the 
holder of such an exclusive contract. 

 
Validity of Bylaw, Rule, Regulation or Policy 

No hearing provided for in this article shall be utilized to make 
determinations as to the merits or substantive validity of any Medical Staff bylaw, rule, 
regulation or policy.  Where a Practitioner is adversely affected by the application of a 
Medical Staff bylaw, rule, regulation or policy, the Practitioner’s sole remedy is to seek 
review of such bylaw, rule, regulation or policy initially by the Medical Executive 
Committee.  The Medical Executive Committee may in its discretion consider the 
request according to such procedures as it deems appropriate.  If the Practitioner is 
dissatisfied with the action of the Medical Executive Committee, the Practitioner may 
request review by the Board of Directors, which shall have discretion whether to 
conduct a review according to such procedures as it deems appropriate.  The Board of 
Directors shall consult with the Medical Executive Committee before taking such action 
regarding the bylaw, rule, regulation or policy involved.  This procedure must be utilized 
prior to any legal action. 

 
Department, Section or Service Formation or Elimination 

A Medical Staff department, section, or service can be formed or 
eliminated only following a review and recommendation by the Medical Executive 
Committee regarding the appropriateness of the department, section, or service 
elimination or formation.  The Board of Directors shall consider the recommendations of 

Page 235 of 292



 

16 
184220.4 

the Medical Executive Committee prior to making a final determination regarding the 
formation or elimination. 

 
The Medical Staff Member(s) who’s Privileges may be adversely affected by 

department, section, or service formation or elimination are not afforded hearing rights 
pursuant to Article VII. 

 ARTICLE IX.   AUXILIARY 

The formation of Auxiliary organizations Bylaws shall be approved by the Board 
of Directors. 

ARTICLE XII.   REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 

Section l   At intervals of no more than two (2) years, the Board of Directors shall 
review these Bylaws in their entirety to ensure that they comply with all provisions of the 
Local Health Care District Law, that they continue to meet the needs of District 
Administration and Medical Staff, and that they serve to facilitate the efficient 
administration of the District. 

These Bylaws may from time to time be amended by action of the Board of 
Directors.  Amendments may be proposed at any Regular meeting of the Board of 
Directors by any member of the Board.  Action on proposed amendments shall be taken 
at the next Regular meeting of the Board of Directors following the meeting at which 
such amendments are proposed. 

ADOPTION OF BYLAWS 

Originally passed and adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT, duly held on the 9th day of January, 1953 and 
most recently revised on the 30th day of November 2017. 

REVISION HISTORY 

1975 
Revised - March, 1977 
Revised- October, 1978 
Revised- April, 1979 
Revised- March, 1982 
Revised- May, 1983 
Revised- February, 1985 
Revised- July, 1988 
Revised- March, 1990 
Revised- November, 1992 
Revised- February, 1993 
Revised- May, 1994 
Revised- April, 1996 
Revised- September, 1996       

Page 236 of 292



 

17 
184220.4 

Revised – April, 1998 
Revised - September, 1998 
Revised – March, 1999 
Revised – July, 2000 
Revised – January, 2001 
Revised – November, 2002 
Revised – May, 2003 
Revised – July, 2003 
Revised – September, 2004 
Revised – March, 2005 
Revised – December, 2005 
Revised – October, 2006 
Revised – March, 2007 
Revised – April, 2008 
Revised – January, 2009 
Revised – September, 2010 
Revised – September, 2012 
Revised – November, 2014 
Revised – December, 2015 
Revised –November, 2017 

Page 237 of 292



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 
INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
Board Executive Summary 

 
  By: Matt Mushet, Esq. CHC 
  In-House Counsel 
 
 
   DATE: October 18, 2017 
 
 
ISSUE:    
 
Tahoe Endoscopy Center, Inc. was originally registered as a corporation on May 17, 1999, 
with Frederic Neuman, MD listed as the president.  On July 14, 2005, it was sold in its 
entirety to Tahoe Forest Hospital District (“District”).  For at least the past several years, 
the corporation has ceased doing business and its status with the California Secretary of 
State (“State”) is listed as suspended.  However, the District continues to pay the minimum 
annual tax as required. 
 

 
 
ASSESSMENT:  
 
Because the corporation is no longer in use and the District does not plan to revive the 
business, we recommend that it be dissolved.  This would allow the District to stop paying 
the minimum annual tax.  All known debts and liabilities of the company have already been 
paid.  
 

 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
In-house Counsel provides this briefing and respectfully requests that the Board of 
Directors vote to dissolve the corporation.  If approved, a majority of Directors will sign the 
necessary forms to be filed with the State. 
 

Page 238 of 292



Tahoe Forest Gene Upshaw Memorial Cancer Center 

2017 Quality Report to Board 

Melissa Kaime, M.D., Medical Oncologist, Cancer Committee/Quality Program Chair and 

Kelley Bottomley, CTR, Coordinator, Quality Improvement Outcomes & Accreditation Compliance 

The Tahoe Forest Hospital District Cancer Program began evaluating and treating patients in 2006.  The 

program grew and moved to the Gene Upshaw Memorial Tahoe Forest Cancer Center in 2012.  

The Cancer Registry initiated data collection on all cancer patient with submission to the National 

Cancer Data Base starting 1 January 2009.  The total number of cancer patients seen with data 

submitted between 2009 and 2016 is 1542. 

The Cancer Center has initiated many different endeavors to insure quality care is provided.  In addition 

to the affiliation with UC Davis Cancer Care Network, the Cancer Center has partnered with many 

national quality organizations.  The Cancer Center had a successful initial application and site survey 

accreditation with the American College of Surgeons Commission on Cancer (CoC) in 2011.  The Center 

was fully re-accredited with commendation in 2015.  In 2011 the Cancer Committee was formed to 

insure the organization was meeting all CoC standards, which encompasses care of cancer patients 

across the entire enterprise, from community screening and prevention programs, to appropriate 

surgical and medical care, to psychosocial services. 

The Cancer Registry captures patient level data in a standardized format.  The CoC, along with other 

quality focused organizations such as the National Quality Forum and the Centers for Medicare and 

Medicaid Services, uses the registry data to assess the quality of care provided. Some of these quality 

measures are accountability measures that can be used for public reporting, payment incentives, 

selection of providers by consumers, health plans, and purchasers. These measures have a high 

expected performance rate of usually 90%. Other measures are quality improvement measures that are 

intended for internal monitoring of performance within an organization, and they have an expected 

performance rate between 80 and 85%.  Other measures are surveillance measures assessed to provide 

insight into patterns of care and opportunities for improvement.  There are 20 different CoC quality 

measures for eight of the common cancers, and Cancer Committee assesses our performance in all of 

them annually. 

Specific examples of quality measures in breast cancer and colon cancer will be discussed.  In all cases 

where the performance falls below a minimum standard the Cancer Committee evaluates the 

circumstances for measure.  In this way we discover improvements to increase our performance. These 

improvements may involve patient and provider education, new equipment, new technological 

processes, a change in clinical throughput, or a change in electronic medical recording.  Our discussion 

will highlight each of these types of improvements.  In our efforts to better evaluate a performance that 

may fall below standards we often find validated reasons for seemingly low quality measures.  Cancer 

care is complex and we believe the analysis of quality metrics requires a keen clinical eye to look for 

possible confounding variables. 

Page 239 of 292



A relatively new quality assessment endeavor is that of QOPI, Quality Oncology Practice Initiative.  This 

is an oncologist-led, practice-based quality assessment program designed to promote excellence in 

cancer care by helping practices create a culture of self-examination and improvement.  The 

accreditation process for QOPI is data intensive, but the cancer center submitted comprehensive data 

on 88 patients in 2016 and demonstrated a very high rate of compliance with quality measures.  QOPI 

has 195 distinct quality measures to select from for assessment of care.  A follow up assessment in 2017 

demonstrated 100% compliance almost universally. 

As every practice has unique challenges, the Cancer Committee evaluates process improvements within 

our practice environment.  In a two-step process, the committee evaluates a pattern of care to 

determine if there is an opportunity for improvement.  If there are reasonable options for improvement 

the committee will work with parties within the organization to effect change.  We will provide some 

examples of program driven improvements. 

The last quality initiative to be discussed will be that of CancerLinQ.  This national system retrieves data 

from or electronic medical record and provides a unique visual timeline of each patient's care.  It also 

assesses the quality of care as determined by 17 standard quality metrics, shared of which are shared by 

QOPI and the CoC.  It allows a clinician to quickly identify which patients may be falling short of standard 

practices, allowing a change in care.  CancerLinQ also capitalizes on the big data repository of de-

identified real patient data on over 150,000 patients.  This allows a provider to query the database to 

answer clinical questions relating to the actual outcomes of thousands of other similar patients.   

Both QOPI and CancerLinQ will allow Cancer Center physicians to submit data to the Merit-based 

Incentive Payment System, MIPS, for future reimbursement for care provided. 

With the information presented, it will be clear that the Gene Upshaw Memorial Tahoe Forest Cancer 

Center has demonstrated a willingness to partner with many quality assessment organizations in many 

different formats.  We know of no other rural Cancer Center that has achieved these multiple 

accreditations. 

 

 

 

Page 240 of 292



Tahoe Forest 
Gene Upshaw Memorial Cancer 

Center 
2017 Quality Report to Board

Melissa Kaime, M.D.

Medical Oncologist

Cancer Committee/Quality Program Chair

and

Kelley Bottomley, CTR

Coordinator, Quality Improvement Outcomes & Accreditation Compliance

Page 241 of 292



Cancer Program Initial Milestones

• Cancer Program began evaluating and treating patients in 
2006

• Cancer Registry initiated data collection and submission to 
the National Cancer Data Base 1 January 2009

• Successful initial application and site survey accreditation 
with the American College of Surgeons Commission on 
Cancer (CoC) in 2011

• Establishment of Cancer Committee to meet CoC standards

• Establishment of Cancer Conference (Tumor Board)

Page 242 of 292



Patients Seen within the Cancer Center from 
2009 through 2016 for a Cancer Diagnosis

Patient Type Number of Patients Percentage

Number of Newly Diagnosed and/or Treated Patients 
(analytic cases reported and tracked through the National 
Cancer Data Base)

1180 77%

Number of patients previously diagnosed (prior to reference 
date) or traveling in the area

362 23%

Total Number of Patients Seen and Treated in the Cancer 
Center 2009 through 2016

1542 100%

Page 243 of 292



Cancer Program Accreditations & Affiliations
Accreditation/Affiliation Status

American College of Surgeons - Commission on Cancer (CoC) Accreditation 
Reaccreditation Years 2015-2017
Annual Compliance of 27 Standards

Fully Accredited with 
Commendation
Site Survey October 2018

American Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO) Quality Oncology Practice Initiative (QOPI) 
Certification 
Compliance of 16 Quality Measures

Certification Granted 
February 2017

American Society of Radiation Oncology (ASTRO) Accreditation Program for Excellence 
(APEx) 3-Year Accreditation
Annual Compliance of 156 Standards

Fully Accredited March 
2017

Addario Lung Foundation Center of Excellence
Annual Submission of 22 Quality Measures

Center of Excellence 
Member

Implementation of CancerLinQ Data System Completed January 2017

National Accreditation Program for Breast Centers (NAPBC)
Program Development for Accreditation
Annual Compliance of 29 Standards

2018 Apply for On-Site 
Survey
Accreditation Pending

Page 244 of 292



Quality Program and Improvement

Cancer Program general and specialty accreditations help shape the 
quality program for the cancer center 

• Accreditation requires compliance with required standards

• Data analysis and outcome studies for identified national measures

• Program goal setting completed annually

• Quality studies identified through Cancer Committee program review

• Quality improvement projects identified annually and in “real time”

Page 245 of 292



CoC Quality of Care Measures
• Cancer registry data elements are nationally standardized and 

endorsed by 
CoC – Commission on Cancer
NQF – National Quality Forum
CMS – Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services

• The CoC uses the registry data to assess quality of care

• Measures assess performance at the hospital, not just the Cancer 
Center

• Accountability measures can be used for public reporting, payment 
incentives, selection of providers by consumers, health plans, purchasers

• Quality improvement measures are intended for internal monitoring of 
performance within an organization 

• Responsibility of Cancer Committee to annually assess and monitor 
measure outcomes

Page 246 of 292



Commission on Cancer CP3R Quality Measures 
Number  of CP3R Quality Measures

Breast Cancer  - three measures added in 2015 6

Colon Cancer 2

Rectal Cancer 1

Gastric Cancer – one measure added in 2015 1

Lung Cancer – three measures added in 2015 3

Cervical Cancer – three surveillance measures added for 2016 3

Endometrial Cancer – two surveillance measures added for 2016 2

Ovarian Cancer – two surveillance measures added for 2016 2

2016 Total Quality Measures 20

CP3R: Cancer Program Practice Profile Reports
Description of all measures available for review in handout

Page 247 of 292



Breast Cancer Outcomes

Page 248 of 292



Standard 4.4 CP3R Accountability Measures
CoC Measures for Quality of Breast Cancer Care – 2014 Cases

CoC Quality Measure Development with National Quality Forum

Breast Expected 
Performance 

Rate

Measure Description 2014 
Performance 

Rate

Action 
Plan

BCSRT 90% (NQF #219) Radiation therapy is administered within 1 year (365 
days) of diagnosis for women under age 70 receiving breast 
conserving surgery for breast cancer

100% NA

MAC 90% (NQF #559) Combination chemotherapy is recommended or 
administered within 4 months (120 days) or Stage IB-III hormone 
receptor negative breast cancer

100% NA

HT 90% (NQF #220) Tamoxifen or third generation aromatase inhibitor is 
recommended or administered within 1 year (365 days) of 
diagnosis for women with Stage IB-III hormone positive breast 
cancer

100% NA

MASTRT 90% Radiation Therapy is recommended or administered following any 
mastectomy within 1 year (365 days) of diagnosis of breast cancer 
for women with > 4 positive regional lymph nodes

100% NA

Page 249 of 292



Diagnosing Breast Cancer

nBx: Quality Outcome Measure for Needle Biopsy –
Image or palpation-guided needle biopsy to the 

primary site is performed to establish diagnosis of 
breast cancer

Expected performance rate is 80%

Page 250 of 292



Tahoe Forest Experience with image or palpation-guided needle biopsy 
to the primary site is performed to establish diagnosis of breast cancer

• Initial evaluation of 2012 data results were lower than expected at 56%
• Cancer Committee recommended we increase needle biopsy rates as part of the 2015 

clinical goal setting process  
– One barrier identified is the lack of community access to stereotactic biopsy; this 

noninvasive procedure is currently referred outside of Truckee  
– Cancer Committee has worked with the radiology department and implementation is 

planned second quarter 2018, pending purchase of equipment  
– Late 2013 and through 2016 surgeons increased the focus, at the time of consultation, 

to address needle biopsy discussions  
– Increase focus during patient rounds in the cancer program and cancer conference

• As a result of these interventions, the use of image or palpation-guided needle biopsy in 
breast cancer patients increased significantly to 96% in 2015 

• Measure continues to be measured annually, as required by the CoC, through the National 
Cancer Database

Page 251 of 292



Tahoe Forest Cancer Center
Quality Improvement Measure 
2016 Breast Cancer Management Review

Quality Outcome Measure  for Needle 
Biopsy – Image or palpation-guided 
needle biopsy to the primary site is 
performed to establish diagnosis of 
breast cancer

80% compliance is required

Tahoe Forest has improved compliance 
from 56% to 96% over 4 years

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

TFHD 2012 TFHD 2013 TFHD 2014 TFHD 2015 CoC Pgms

Page 252 of 292



Breast Conservation Surgery

BCS: Breast conservation surgery rate for women 
with clinical Stage 0, I, or II breast cancer

This is a surveillance measure with no expected 
performance rate

Page 253 of 292



Tahoe Forest Experience: Monitoring Breast 
Conservation Surgery

• 2015 and 2016 - program goal identified to recommend that all 
patients eligible for breast conservation (lumpectomy) be offered a 
radiation consult to be completed prior to surgical decision 

– Cancer Committee found that in 2014 only 14% of these patients had a 
radiation consult prior to surgical decision  

– 2015: efforts were implemented to increase awareness through cancer 
conference presentations, patient rounds, nurse navigation involvement, 
and support of the surgeons in their consultative process  

– 2015: breast cancer cases reviewed to determine timeline for 
consultations.  81% of patients did have radiation consultation prior to 
definitive surgical procedure

Page 254 of 292



0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Breast Conservation

TFHD 2013 TFHD 2014 TFHD Adj 2015

Ca State 60% CoC Pgms

• Breast Conserving Surgery  (BCS) is offered to 
appropriate patients with breast cancer  

• National rate of BCS has dropped in recent years 
to 58% of all eligible patients diagnosed with 
early stage breast cancer (Stage 0, I, II) 

• The BCS rate is evaluated annually by the 
program leadership

Tahoe Forest Cancer Center
Surveillance Measure 

Quality Outcome Measure  BCS – Breast  
conservation surgery rate for women with 
clinical Stage 0, I, II breast cancer 

Page 255 of 292



2015 Quality Study: Timeline for 
Radiation Consultations 81%

10% 9%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

% of Pt XRT
Consults Prior

to Surgery

% of Pt XRT
Consults After

Surgery

No XRT
Consult

2015 Breast Cancer Cases

• The choice of mastectomy or lumpectomy 
followed by radiation is a personal decision

• A consultation with a radiation oncologist 
prior to breast surgery allows a woman to 
make a better informed decision

Page 256 of 292



Study to Review Patients Eligible for Breast Conservation 
Surgery

• 2015 review includes 51 patients eligible for breast conservation 
surgery 
– Initial review identified a breast conservation rate of 73%; 14 patients had 

a mastectomy  
– We assessed the reasons for 14 patients having a mastectomy

• Analysis of the patients having mastectomy resulted in an adjusted 
conservation rate of 92% 
– This outcome demonstrates an excellent result of 2015/2016 program 

efforts to increase the awareness and patient decision process  
– Although patients may choose mastectomy, there are contributing issues 

resulting in appropriate decision making between patients and physicians

Page 257 of 292



2015 Mastectomy Cases Who Were Eligible for Breast 
Conservation, n=14

• 4 Patients with intended conservation having positive margins 
then choosing mastectomy

• 1 Patient BRCA+

• 1 Patient with previous history of breast cancer

• 1 Patient with significant positive family history

• 3 Patients 90+ years of age (contributing medical issues)

• 1 Patient with co-morbid conditions

• 2 Patients with travel issues (1 in Plumas & 1 in So Lake Tahoe)

• 1 Patient who chose Bilateral Mastectomy with Reconstruction

Page 258 of 292



Staging of Breast Cancer Patients
• Staging is reviewed on an ongoing basis in weekly chart rounds for 

both medical oncology and radiation oncology, and tumor boards.  
Staging is utilized in NCCN guidelines and treatment decisions.

• Quality review of 100% of staging is performed by the Cancer 
Registry staff during the abstracting process, and reviews the staging 
accuracy by the managing physician.  This is reported at Cancer 
Committee annually.

• Cancer Committee performed a comprehensive evaluation of breast 
cancer care provided in 2015:  
– Fifty-seven patients diagnosed in 2015 were reviewed

• 9% had DCIS (non-invasive cancer) and 93% had invasive breast cancer 
• 88% were diagnosed with early stage breast cancer (Stages 0, I and II)  

• This demonstrates excellent community screening mammography 
programs

• Further analysis revealed appropriate treatment with hormonal 
therapy options and appropriate referrals for genetic counseling and 
testing

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

AJCC TNM Staging

Stage 0 Stage I Stage II

Stage III Stage IV
Page 259 of 292



Colon Cancer Outcomes

Page 260 of 292



Colon Cancer Quality Measure – 12RLN: Number of Lymph 
Nodes Removed at Surgical Resection (NQF #0225)

• Cancer Committee noted a rate of 50% in 2012 and 67% in 
2013, falling below the requirement of 85% 

• In 2014/2015, Cancer Committee worked with the pathology 
department to ensure the use of fat clearing solutions to 
increase the identification of lymph nodes in surgical resection 
specimens 

• Significant improvement in the following years: 

– 2014: 89%

– 2015: 85%

Page 261 of 292



Tahoe Forest Cancer Center
Quality Improvement Measure 
2012-2015 Colon Cancer Management 

Quality Outcome Measure 12RNL – At 
least 12 regional lymph nodes are 
removed and pathologically examined 
for resected colon cancer 

85% compliance required

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

LNs Removed

TFHD 2012 TFHD 2013 TFHD 2014 TFHD 2015 Ca State Ca Pgms

Page 262 of 292



QOPI Quality Measures
Quality Oncology Practice Initiative

An oncologist-led, practice-based quality assessment program 
designed to promote excellence in cancer care by helping 

practices create a culture of self-examination and improvement

195 quality measures

Description of all measures available in handout

Page 263 of 292



Spring 2016 Gene Upshaw Memorial Tahoe Forest Cancer Center Overall Quality Score is : 92.49%

Module Description Num Denom
Site Rate 

(%) Percentile
QOPI 

Aggregate (%)

Difference 
from QOPI 
Aggregate

Core Core 1: Pathology report confirming malignancy* 55 55 100 N/A 99.32 0.68

Core
Core 2: Staging documented within one month of first office 
visit* 49 54 90.74 58.94 86.24 4.5

Core
Core 6: Pain addressed appropriately (defect-free measure, 3, 4a, and 
5)* 52 55 94.55 70.73 83.85 10.7

Core
Core 9: Documented plan for antineoplastic treatment, including doses, 
route, and time intervals 32 32 100 N/A 87.17 12.83

Core
Core 10: Antineoplastic treatment intent (curative vs. non-curative) 
documented before or within two weeks after administration 32 32 100 N/A 94.02 5.98

Core Core 24: Patient emotional well-being assessed by the second office visit* 55 55 100 N/A 80.08 19.92

Core Core 21a: Smoking status/tobacco use documented in past year 53 55 96.36 4.67 99.35 -2.99

Symptom
Symptom 27: Corticosteroids and serotonin antagonist prescribed or 
administered with moderate/high emetic risk antineoplastic treatment 27 27 100 N/A 96.11 3.89

Symptom
Symptom 33: Infertility risks discussed prior to antineoplastic treatment 
with patients of reproductive age 1 2 50 60.07 42.51 7.49

EOL
EOL 38: Pain addressed appropriately (defect-free measure, 35, 36a, and 
37)* 33 37 89.19 44.64 82.75 6.44

EOL
EOL 45a: Hospice enrollment and enrolled more than 7 days before death 
(defect-free measure, 42 and inverse 45) 12 34 35.29 46.43 37.62 -2.33

Breast

Breast 53: Combination antineoplastic treatment received within 4 
months of diagnosis by women under 70 with AJCC stage IA (T1c) and IB -
III ER/PR negative breast cancer 3 3 100 N/A 97.03 2.97

Page 264 of 292



Module Description Num Denom
Site Rate 

(%) Percentile

QOPI 
Aggregate 

(%)

Difference 
from QOPI 
Aggregate

Breast
Breast 54: Test for Her-2/neu overexpression or gene 
amplification* 34 34 100 N/A 98.1 1.9

Breast
Breast 56a: Trastuzumab not received when Her-2/neu is negative or undocumented 
(inverse of 56 )* 12 12 100 N/A 99.3 0.7

Breast
Breast 57: Trastuzumab received by patients with AJCC IA (T1c) and IB - III Her-2/neu
positive breast cancer* 3 3 100 N/A 98.45 1.55

Breast
Breast 59: Tamoxifen or AI received within 1 year of diagnosis by patients with AJCC 
stage IA(T1c) and IB - III ER or PR positive breast cancer* 12 12 100 N/A 94.94 5.06

Colorectal Colorectal 66: CEA within 4 months of curative resection for colorectal cancer* 3 5 60 5.79 90.64 -30.64

Colorectal
Colorectal 68: Adjuvant antineoplastic treatment received within 4 months of diagnosis 
by patients with AJCC stage III colon cancer 1 1 100 N/A 95.33 4.67

Colorectal
Colorectal 72: Adjuvant antineoplastic treatment received within 9 months of diagnosis 
by patients with AJCC stage II or III rectal cancer 1 1 100 N/A 97.38 2.62

Colorectal
Colorectal 73: Colonoscopy before or within 6 months of curative colorectal resection 
or completion of primary adjuvant antineoplastic treatment 5 5 100 N/A 84.99 15.01

Colorectal
Colorectal 74: KRAS testing for patients with metastatic colorectal cancer who received 
anti-EGFR MoAb therapy* 0 0 0** 80.45

Colorectal
Colorectal 75a: Anti-EGFR MoAb therapy not received by patients with KRAS mutation 
(Inverse of 75 )* 1 1 100 N/A 87.46 12.54

NSCLC
NSCLC 81: Adjuvant cisplatin-based antineoplastic treatment received within 60 days 
after curative resection by patients with AJCC stage II or IIIA NSCLC 0 0 0** 66.67

NSCLC
NSCLC 84: Performance status documented for patients with initial AJCC stage IV or 
distant metastatic NSCLC* 3 3 100 N/A 83.92 16.08

NSCLC

NSCLC 85: Platinum doublet first-line antineoplastic treatment or EGFR-TKI (or other 
targeted therapy with documented DNA mutation) received by patients with initial 
AJCC stage IV or distant metastatic NSCLC with performance status of 0-1 without prior 
history of antineoplastic treatment 1 1 100 N/A 97.88 2.12

NSCLC
NSCLC 88: Positive mutation for patients with stage IV NSCLC who received first-line 
EGFR tyrosine kinase inhibitor or other targeted therapy* 0 0 0** 89.91

Page 265 of 292



QOPI Spring 2017Measure Report
Measure Num Denom Rate

COR 1 Pathology report confirming malignancy* 35 35 100

COR 2 Staging documented within one month of first office visit* 33 34 97.06

COR 3 Pain assessed by second office visit 35 35 100

COR 4a Pain intensity quantified by second office visit 35 35 100

COR 5 Plan of care for moderate/severe pain documented 6 6 100

COR 6 Pain addressed appropriately (defect-free measure 3, 4a, and 5)* 35 35 100

COR 6a Pain assessed on either of the two most recent office visits 35 35 100

COR 6b Pain intensity quantified on either of the two most recent office visits 35 35 100

COR 6c Plan of care for moderate/severe pain documented on either of the two most recent office visits 5 5 100

COR 6d Pain addressed appropriately on either of the two most recent office visits (defect-free measure 6a, 6b, and 6c) 35 35 100

COR 6e Pain addressed appropriately by second office visit and during most recent office visits (defect-free measure 6 and 6d) 35 35 100

COR 7 Effectiveness of narcotic assessed on visit following prescription 4 4 100

COR 8 Constipation assessed at time of narcotic prescription or following visit 4 4 100

COR 9 Documented plan for Chemotherapy, including doses, route, and time intervals* 22 22 100

COR 10 Chemotherapy intent (curative vs. non-curative) documented before or within two weeks after administration* 22 22 100

COR 11 Chemotherapy intent discussion with patient documented 22 22 100

COR 12 Number of chemotherapy cycles documented 17 17 100

COR 13 Chemotherapy planning completed appropriately (defect-free measure, 9, 10, and 12) 22 22 100

COR 13aa Performance status documented prior to initiating chemotherapy regimen (Test Measure) 22 22 100

COR 13a1 Chemotherapy administered to patients with metastatic solid tumor with performance status of 3, 4, or undocumented (Lower Score -
Better) (Top 5 Measure) (Defect-free measure 13a1a, 13a1b)

0 4 0

COR 13a1a Chemotherapy administered to patients with metastatic solid tumor with performance status of 3 or 4 (Lower Score - Better) (Top 5 
Measure)

0 4 0

COR 13a1b Chemotherapy administered to patients with metastatic solid tumor with performance status undocumented (Lower Score - Better)(Top 5 
Measure)

0 4 0

COR 13oral4 Documented plan for Oral Chemotherapy (defect-free Measure 13oral4a -13oral4d) (Test Measure) 0 2 0

COR 13oral4a Documented plan for oral chemotherapy: dose (Test Measure) 2 2 100

COR 13oral4b Documented plan for oral chemotherapy: administration schedule (start day, days of treatment/rest and planned duration) (Test
Measure)

2 2 100

COR 13oral4c Documented plan for oral chemotherapy provided to patient/caregiver prior to start of therapy and practitioner(s) providing continuing 
care (PCP) within 3 months of starting therapy(Test Measure)

0 2 0

COR 13oral4d Documented plan for oral chemotherapy: Indications (Test Measure) 2 2 100

COR 13oral5 Oral chemotherapy education provided prior to the start of therapy (defect-free Measure 13oral5aoc - 13oral5coc) (Test Measure) 2 2 100

COR 13oral5a Oral chemotherapy education provided prior to the start of therapy: missed doses (Test Measure) 2 2 100

COR 13oral5b Oral chemotherapy education provided prior to the start of therapy: Toxicities (Test Measure) 2 2 100

COR 13oral5c Oral chemotherapy education provided prior to the start of therapy: Clinic contact instructions (Test Measure) 2 2 100

COR 13oral6 Oral chemotherapy monitored on visit/contact following start of therapy (defect-free Measure 13oral6aoc - 13oral6boc) (Test Measure) 2 2 100

COR 13oral6a Oral chemotherapy monitored on visit/contact following start of therapy: Medication adherence assessed (Test Measure) 2 2 100

COR 13oral6b Oral chemotherapy monitored on visit/contact following start of therapy: Medication adherence addressed (Test Measure) 0 0 0

COR 14 Signed patient consent for chemotherapy 0 22 0

COR 15 Patient consent documented in practitioner note 22 22 100

COR 16 Patient consent for chemotherapy (combined measure, 14 or 15 ) 22 22 100
Page 266 of 292



Program Driven Improvements

Page 267 of 292



Standard 4.7: 2017 Quality Improvement – 4.8 iFOB Screening

• Concern identified in 2016 with non standardized results 
reporting of iFOB screening resulting in difficulty reporting 
and tracking of results

• Review of 20 patients screened in 2016 to determine 
outcome:  
– Medical Group patients results reported in the clinic setting in a 

text field  
– Reporting of results was not standardized (i.e. text results of 

positive, pos, +, negative, neg, or -)
– Confirmed concerns in regards to difficulty reporting and tracking 

within cancer committee and community screening departments  

Page 268 of 292



Standard 4.8: 2017 Quality Improvement – 4.8 iFOB Screening

• Community Outreach department shared concerns with primary 
care clinics of TFHD medical groups

• Issue addressed in second quarter of 2017

• Medical groups worked collaboratively with electronic record 
vendor to create drop down menus
– Document ordering of iFOB screening

– Document results (positive or negative) of screening

• Reports are now easily available to assess number patients 
screened as well as accurate assessment of screening results

Page 269 of 292



2015/2016 Program Quality Improvement

• Increase the number of sites we can push/pull diagnostic images

5/29/2015 12/8/2016

UC Davis UC Davis

Barton Barton

Reno Diagnostic Center Reno Diagnostic Center

Renown Renown

Roseville Sutter Roseville Sutter

Saint Mary’s Medical Center

Plumas District

Eastern Plumas

Page 270 of 292



CancerLinQ

• CancerLinQ® is a system that continually learns from itself and 
enables change:

• Tracks the quality of care in real time to ensure that patients 
receive evidence based care

• Gains insights from real world de-identified data on hundreds 
of thousands of patients, potentially identifying important 
trends and increasing the confidence of care decisions

• Visualizes patients’ medical histories in powerful new ways

Page 271 of 292



Page 272 of 292



Page 273 of 292



Page 274 of 292



Page 275 of 292



Page 276 of 292



Cancer Program Accreditations & Affiliations

Accreditation/Affiliation Number of US 
Participating Practices

American College of Surgeons - Commission on Cancer (CoC) Accreditation 1500

American Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO) Quality Oncology Practice Initiative (QOPI) 
Certification 

389

American Society of Radiation Oncology (ASTRO) Accreditation Program for Excellence 60

Addario Lung Foundation Center of Excellence Membership 11

Implementation of CancerLinQ Data System 100

Page 277 of 292



Objectives Responsible Executive Status of ActionActions Progress Report Time Line

Chief:  Ted Owens,  Executive Director of  Governance and Business Development            Goals: 2016 - 2020

Strategic Initiative:  Community Outreach 

Develop solid connections and relationships within the communities we serve.  

Status Scale for 

Objectives

 - Objective/Action Completed

 - Objective/Action In Progress 

 - Objective/Action Not Started

Weis

Owens

1/2016-10/2017:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

1. Truckee Donner Public Utility District (housing 

opportunity sites) Weis   

2. Town of Truckee Successor Agency member 

Owens   

3.  Truckee Tahoe Airport District (Zagster-Public 

Bicycle Project  

4.  Truckee North Tahoe Transportation 

Management Agency-Recognition 2017 for 

Transportation Pilot Program Grant  

5.  Placer LAFCo (TFHD/updated Municipal 

Services Review 

2016-2020

Weis

Owens

1/2016 - 10/2017: 

1. Truckee Rotary Weis, Owens, Van Gelder, 

McConn ; Incline Village Rotary Epstein

2.  Sierra Senior Service BOD Member Krasne  

3.  Truckee Chamber Annual Awards Banquet 

Weis 

4.  Truckee Tahoe community Steering 

Committee Weis 

5.  Health System represented at Truckee 

Thursday's 

6.  Employee volunteers 4'th of July-sunscreen/lip 

balm 

7.  Tahoe City Chamber/Music on the Commons-

sponsor  

8.  Tahoe Institute for Natural Sciences-sponsor

9.  Truckee Donner Rec & Park/Music in the Park-

sponsor 

10.  Truckee Donner Land Trust / BOD Owens

11.  Truckee Chamber of Commerce BOD 

Member Owens 

11. Humane Society Owens

12.  Public Agency Block Party-Wellness

2016-2020

Objective 1: 

Broaden brand 

exposure through 

inter-governmental 

and service 

organization 

participation.

2. Participate in local service and community 

organizations.

1. Participate in local Inter-governmental 

organizations.

Page 278 of 292



Objectives Responsible Executive Status of ActionActions Progress Report Time Line

Weis 

Owens 

Weis 

Owens 

2016 - 2017:  

1.  CEO Letters to taxpayers  

2.  Advocacy letters to legislators and federal 

representatives 
2016-2020

Objective 2: 

Communicate and 

educate to 

community and 

region about Tahoe 

Forest Health System 

Services

1.  Develop verbal opportunities and topics of 

interest to the communities we serve. 

Weis 

Owens

1/2016 - 10/2017:   

1.  Health Care 101 Community Forum-Fact or 

Fiction Weis

2.  Mountain Health Today 8 programs

3.  Member of  Regional Managers Weis 

4.  ACHD Annual Meeting-Panelist Owens

5.  TFHS booth at TTUSD Career Day/keynote 

speaker  Owens  

6.  Testimony - California Assembly Loc. Gov. 

Committee Owens 

3.Participate in external organizations that 

support  sustainability of health system. 

Weis

Owens 

1/2016 - 10/2017: 

1.  Regional Housing Council Owens 

2.  District Hospital Leadership Forum:  BOD, 

Advocacy - Washington DC Weis

3.  Association of California Healthcare Districts: 

BOD, Advocacy Committee and Law Committee, 

California Legislative meetings  Weis, Owens  

4. California Hospital Association -  California 

Legislative meetings Weis, Owens 

5. California Hospital Association - Washington 

DC Owens

2016-2020

2016-2020

2018-2020

1. Identify friendly engagement opportunities to 

introduce TFHS, tell our story and to share our 

service structure and quality.

Weis 

Owens 

1/2016 - 10/2017:

1.  Specific Healthcare and introductory meeting 

with new Town Manager, Jeff Loux Weis., Owens

2.  Hosted California Legislative Analyst Office 

and Chief's of Staff at TFHD

3.  Meeting with T. Hayes, CEO Eastern Plumas - 

Broadening relationships Weis

4.  Good Morning Truckee Weis

5.  TC Breakfast Club Weis    

3.  Hosted Congressman McClintock campus visit 

2016-2020

Objective 1 

Continued: 

 Broaden brand 

exposure through 

inter-governmental 

and service 

organization 

participation.

Objective 3: 

Outreach to second 

home owners to 

increase 

communication on 

services at TFHS.

2.  "Get to Know us Before You Have to"

2. Develop written opportunities and topics of 

interest to the communities we serve. 

Page 279 of 292



Objectives Responsible Executive Status of ActionActions Progress Report Time Line

Weis 

Owens 

1/2017 - 10/2017:

1.  Meeting with  Senior Leadership KSL  Squaw 

Valley 

2.  Mountain Housing Council leadership meeting 

3.  Northstar leadership meeting

4.  District Fire Chief's Weis    

5.  TTUSD  Weis  

6.   Contractors Association of Truckee Tahoe 

7. Truckee Chamber of Commerce  

8. Truckee Tomorrow (economic development) 

Weis  Owens

2017-2020

1. Meet with leaders in business community to 

determine healthcare concerns.

Weis 

Owens 

1/2017 - 10/2017:

1.  Senior leadership - KSL Squaw Valley Weis    

2.  Contractors Association of Truckee Tahoe 

Owens    

3. Tahoe Sierra Board of Realtors Weis,  Owens       

4.  Several meetings with Sierra Senior Services / 

Meals on Wheels Weis, Owens 2016-2020

Objective 4:

Increase Business 

Leader Engagement

2. Meet with leaders in business community to 

build relationships. 

Page 280 of 292



Tahoe Forest Health System 

 

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 

PROGRAM  

Page 281 of 292



Foundations of an Emergency 
Preparedness Program 

Risk Assessment 

& Planning 

 

 

Communication Plan 

 

Training 

& Testing 

Policies & Procedures 

 

Emergency 

Preparedness 

Program 

Page 282 of 292



Risk Assessment and Planning 

 Annual risk assessment on likely hazards for community 

service areas. 

 Human Related Events:  mass casualty incident, terrorism 

 Naturally Occurring Events:  forest fire, flood, blizzards, 

epidemic 

 Technologic Events:  electrical failure, phone failure,  

 Emergency Operations Plan updated annually based on 

risk assessment.  

 National Incident Command System (NIMS) 

 

Page 283 of 292



Policies and Procedures 

 California Region IV Multi-Casualty Incident Plan 

 Nevada County Healthcare Surge and Alternate Care 

Site Plan 

 Washoe County Mutual aid and Evacuation Annex 

 HICS -  Hospital Incident Command System 

 Weapons of Mass Destruction Plan 

 Disaster Surge Plan 

 Food and Nutrition Plans 

 Policies and Procedures address a range of issues. 

 

Page 284 of 292



Communication Plan 

 Notification of disaster – activation level 

 Level 1 – Alert 

 Level 2 – Partial 

 Level 3 - Full 

 Medical Health Area Operational Coordinator (MHAOC)-

Nevada County 

 Washoe County Emergency Management 

 Communication options: computer /phone pop up 

messages, mobile radios, runners, email, text, satellite 

phones, amateur radio 

 

Page 285 of 292



Disaster Activation Levels 

Level 1 - Alert Level 2 - Partial Level 3 - Full 

Event Phase:  Alert 

Parameters:   

 Available information indicates that normal 
hospital resources are adequate to handle the 
incident. 

 The Hospital Command Center (HCC) is not 
activated.  

 Personnel remain on duty through their normal 
shift and continue routine work unless 
reassigned to support the incident 

 There is no recall of staff unless specified by the 
IC. 

 The labor pool is not open. 

Which HICS positions are activated:   

 IC Only 
 

WHO IS NOTIFIED: 

Who? By Whom? 

Administrator 
On-Call 

House Supervisor or IC 

On-Duty 
Hospital 
Personnel 

Overhead page:  Code Triage 
(Internal or External) – Alert  

Off-Duty 
Hospital 
Personnel 

 The IC or delegate will 
only call in staff needed 
to support the specific 
situation.   

 IC or delegate will send a 
System Wide Email 

After Hours Notification: 
 Open departments will notify their directors. 

Examples:   

 Severe Weather Advisory 

 Incident impacting 2 or more departments 

 Localized power failures 

 Special Events/VIP 
Updated: 5/12 

Event Phase:  Partial Activation 

Parameters:  
 Available information indicates the incident may exceed our 

available resources. 

 The HCC will be activated, Disaster Resource Lists are 
activated - on-duty employee availability is documented then 
faxed to 582-6511.   

 Labor Pool will be opened as indicated. 

Which HICS positions are activated:  
 IC, Operations, Logistics, Planning, Finance and Command 

Staff as needed. 

WHO IS NOTIFIED: 

Who? By Whom? 

Administrator 
On-Call 

House Supervisor or IC 

On-Duty 
Hospital 
Personnel 

Overhead page:  Code Triage (Internal or 
External) – Partial Activation 

Off-Duty 
Hospital 
Personnel  

 Only call off-duty employees if 
directed to do so by the Incident 
Commander. 

 IC or delegate will send a System Wide 
Email  

MHOAC IC or delegate 

After Hours Notification: 
 The IC will give the Extended Care Center (ECC) a list of 

directors needed to manage the incident.  ECC will call those 
directors. 

 Those directors will be responsible to activate their DRL as 
determined by the IC. 

Examples:   

 Moderate Earthquake 

 Wildfire affecting campus 

 Major wind or rain storm 

 Multi-Casualty Incident 

 Extended campus wide power outages 

 System wide phone or internet failure 

Event Phase:  Full Activation 

Parameters:   
 A major incident has occurred requiring considerable 

resources. 

 The HCC is activated.   

 Disaster Resource Lists are activated - document 

availability of on duty employees then fax to 582-6511.    

 Labor Pool will be opened. 

Which HICS positions are activated:   

 IC, Operations, Logistics, Planning, Finance and 

Command Staff as needed 

 

WHO IS NOTIFIED: 

Who? By Whom? 

Administrator On-
Call 

House Supervisor or IC 

On-Duty Hospital 
Personnel 

Overhead page:  Code Triage 
(Internal or External) – Full 
Activation 

Off-Duty Hospital 
Personnel 

 Only call off-duty employees 
if directed to do so by the 
Incident Commander. 

 IC or delegate will send a 
System Wide Email 

MHOAC IC or delegate 

After Hours Notification: 
 ECC will automatically notify all business hour directors. 

 The business hour Directors will be responsible to 
activate their DRL as determined by the IC. 

Examples:   
 Major campus or regional emergency 

 Incidents with heavy resource involvement 

 Major earthquake 

 External Hazardous Spill with many victims 
 
MHOAC= Medical Health Operational Area Coordinator Page 286 of 292



Training and Testing 

 Annual emergency preparedness training through Health 
Stream 

 HICS training with key staff 

 Two disaster exercises per year. 

 One exercise includes community, county or state  
involvement. 

 Monthly Inter-hospital Emergency Coordinating Council 
meetings - Washoe County. 

 Quarterly meetings with California-Nevada Border Counties 
Emergency Planning Committee 

 Quarterly meetings with Nevada County Healthcare 
Preparedness Program 

 

 

Page 287 of 292



Questions? 

Page 288 of 292



 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 1 of 1 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

Monday, October 16, 2017 at 1:00 p.m. 
Tahoe Conference Room - Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10054 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Mary Brown, Chair; Randy Hill, Board Member 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 
54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee may choose 
to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the 
item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 09/18/2017 

 
6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
6.1. Policy Review 

6.1.1. Board of Director Bylaws ................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
Governance Committee will review proposed revisions to Board of Directors bylaws. 

6.1.2. Committee Charters ........................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
Governance Committee will review proposed committee charters. 

6.1.3. ABD-03 Board Compensation and Reimbursement ......................................... ATTACHMENT 
Governance Committee will review and discuss ABD-03 Board Compensation and 
Reimbursement policy. 

6.2. Board Self-Assessment Discussion .................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 
Governance Committee will review a sample board self-assessment tool and discuss a potential 
date to administer the assessment. 
 

7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

8. NEXT MEETING DATE  
 
9. ADJOURN 

 

 

Page 289 of 292



 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
Page 1 of 1 

 

 
BOARD PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
Tuesday, October 3, 2017 at 1:00 p.m. 

Human Resources Conference Room - Tahoe Forest Hospital 
10024 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. ROLL CALL 
Alyce Wong, R.N., Chair; Dale Chamblin, Board Member 

 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 

 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 
54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee may choose 
to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the 
item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 7/24/2017 ......................................................................... ATTACHMENT  

 
6. CLOSED SESSION 

6.1. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code § 54957.6) 
Name of District Negotiator(s) to Attend Closed Session: Alyce Wong 
Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer 
 

7. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
7.1. Employee Relations  

Chief Human Resources Officer will review any open items related to employee relations and 
Employee Associations.  
 

8. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

9. NEXT MEETING DATE 
Personnel Committee will discuss its next meeting date.   
  

10.     ADJOURN 

Page 290 of 292



 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
Page 1 of 1 

 

 
BOARD PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
Monday, October 23, 2017 at 1:00 p.m. 

Human Resources Conference Room - Tahoe Forest Hospital 
10024 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. ROLL CALL 
Alyce Wong, R.N., Chair; Dale Chamblin, Board Member 

 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 

 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 
54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee may choose 
to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the 
item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 10/03/2017 ....................................................................... ATTACHMENT  

 
6. CLOSED SESSION 

6.1. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code § 54957.6) 
Name of District Negotiator(s) to Attend Closed Session: Alyce Wong 
Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer 
 

6.2. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 

10/03/2017 
 

7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

8. NEXT MEETING DATE 
Personnel Committee will meet as needed.   
  

9.     ADJOURN 

Page 291 of 292



  Page 1 of 1 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
     Wednesday, October 25, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.  

Pine Street Cafe Conference Room - Tahoe Forest Hospital 
10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Dale Chamblin, Chair; Mary Brown, Board Member 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state 
your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board Clerk 24 
hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot 
take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly 
answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 9/25/2017 ........................................................................ ATTACHMENT  
 

6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
6.1. Financial Reports 

6.1.1. Financial Report – Preliminary September 2017 Quarterly Package ............... ATTACHMENT 
6.1.2. Quarterly Review Financial Status of Separate Entities ................................... ATTACHMENT  
6.1.3. Quarterly Review of Revenue Payor Mix .......................................................... ATTACHMENT  
6.1.4. TIRHR Expenditure Report ................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 

6.2. FY17 Audit 
The Finance Committee will receive an update on the status of FY17 audit preparation. 

 
7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

8. AGENDA INPUT FOR NEXT FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING ......................................... ATTACHMENT 
 

9. NEXT MEETING DATE ...................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
 

10. ADJOURN 
 

 

 

 

 
*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

Page 292 of 292


	Coverpage
	Agenda
	AGENDA
	2017-10-26 Regular Board Meeting_FINAL Agenda.pdf

	ITEMS 1 - 11 See Agenda
	12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
	12.1. Employee of the Month October 2017.pdf
	12.2. National Nurse Practitioner (NP) Week is November 12-18

	13. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
	13.1. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Consent Agenda.pdf

	14. CONSENT CALENDAR
	14.1. Approval of Meeting Minutes
	2017-09-28 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors_DRAFT Minutes.pdf

	14.2. Financial Report
	14.2.1. Financial Report - September 2017.pdf

	14.4. Informational Reports
	14.4.1. CEO Board Report - October 2017.pdf
	14.4.2. COO Board Report - October 2017.pdf
	14.4.3. CNO Board Report - October 2017.pdf
	14.4.4. CIIO Board Report - October 2017.pdf
	14.4.5. CMO Board Report - October 2017.pdf

	14.5. Policy Review
	14.5.1. ABD-03 Board Compensation and Reimbursement.pdf


	15. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION
	15.1.a RHC Presentation.pdf
	15.1.b Resolution 2017-07 RHC Application for MSC Pediatric Clinic.pdf
	15.3.a. Board of Directors Bylaws DRAFT v8 2017_1023 REDLINE.pdf
	15.3.b. Board of Directors Bylaws DRAFT v8 2017_1023 CLEAN.pdf
	15.4. Dissolution of Tahoe Endoscopy Center, Inc.pdf

	16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION
	16.1. 2017 Cancer Center Quality Report.pdf
	16.2. Physician Engagement Survey Results
	16.3. Strategic Plan Update
	16.3.1. Strategic Update - Community Relations.pdf

	16.4. Board Education
	16.4.1. Emergency Preparedness Presentation.pdf


	17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY
	18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
	18.1. 2017-10-16 Governance Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf
	18.2.a 2017-10-03 Board Personnel Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf
	18.2.b 2017-10-23 Board Personnel Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf
	18.3. 2017-10-25 Board Finance Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf




